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Today, nearly 6,000 Americans twit: 65 .

s

every day. In just 10 y@ars%

that number will grow
to nearly 10,000 a day.

Unbelievable, but true. Once the symbols of American youth, the Baby Boom generation
soon will be part of the largest senior generation in history. The projected senior boom will
strain America’s healthcare resources — capacity in the nation's long-term care facilities,
the number of trained geriatric healthcare professionals, as well as public and private
funding. There is a meaningful solution to the challenges ahead, however, and that solution is
appropriate geriatric pharmaceutical care. At the forefront of geriatric pharmaceutical care,
Omuicare is well-positioned to meet the demands of a growing senior population to live
longer, healthier lives while containing costs — both now and in the future.

Omnicare is a leading provider of pharmaceuti-
cal care for seniors. Each and every day,
Omnicare’s experienced staff of pharmacists serve
residents in skilled nursing, assisted living and
other healthcare facilities, comprising more than
950,000 beds in 47 states, with one goal in mind:
to help ensure the health of the senior population
in a cost-effective manner.

Beyond merely filling prescriptions, Omnicare
Senior Pharmacy Services, the nation’s largest
institutional pharmacy services provider, is distin-
guished by its advanced clinical programs and
comprehensive pharmaceutical care. The
Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutical Care
Guidelines®, a unique, clinically based drug
formulary, is considered the “gold standard” in
determining the most appropriate drug therapy for
the elderly, while Omnicare health management
programs aid in early detection of illness and treat-
ment among seniors. Today, Omnicare is aiso the
largest provider of clinical and financial software
to skilled nursing and assisied living facilities,
serving more than 5,000 such facilities.

Through its daily activities, Omnicare accumu-
lates a tremendous amount of data. Omnicare
combines this data with its proprietary outcomes
algorithm technology, based on medical best

practice in geriatric pharmacotherapy, to identify
and help treat diagnosed or even undiagnosed
disease states in the elderly.

Leveraging its core clinical resources and informa-
tion database, Omnicare’s reach now extends beyond
the institutional healthcare setting. Through
Omnicare Senior Health Outcomes,*™ Omnicare man-
ages pharmaceutical care on behalf of major corpo-
rations for more than 600,000 retirees, employees
and dependents who live independently.

Omnicare Clinical Research, a leading contract
research organization with operations in 29 coun-
tries, partners with drug manufacturers to help
develop new drugs that safely and affordably
enhance the quality of life.

Omnicare’s commitment to optimizing drug
therapy for the senior population to achieve the
best health outcomes in both care and cost sets it
apart in the industry. Its strategy of leveraging its
core pharmaceutical distribution business through
the expansion of clinical and information services
sets the foundation for a secure financial position
and the long-term growth of Omnicare. By
providing the highest-quality care for the eldertly,
Omnicare is creating long-term value for its
shareholders.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

Except for historical information, statemenis in this report that are forward-looking involve risks and uncertainties. Investors are
cautioned that such statements are only predictions and that actual events or results may differ materially. Please see
Management's Discussion and Analysis, page 53, for factors that could cause resuits to differ materially from those discussed.
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Financial Highlights

(In thousands, except per share data) For the years ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Total net sales $2,632,754 $2,183,036 $1,987,839
Operating income (earnings before interest and income taxes, EBIT)® $ 258,386 $ 173,494 $ 130,687
Special items" 23,195 23,161 27,199
Goodwill amortization® — 33,199 32,670
Adjusted EBIT®@® $ 279,781 $ 229,854 $ 190,556
Net income® $ 125,906 $ 74,271 $ 48,817
Special items, net of taxes™ 14,381 14,361 17,135
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes® — 20,583 20,582
Adjusted net income™® $ 140,287 $ 109,215 $ 86,534
Earnings per share (EPS):
Basic EPS® _ $ 1.34 $ 0.80 $ 0.53
Special items, net of taxes®™ 0.15 0.15 0.19
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes® —_ 0.22 0.22
Adjusted basic EPS©@® S 1.49 $ 1.17 $ 0.94
Diluted EPS® $ 1.33 $ 0.79 $ 0.53
Special items, net of taxes®™ 0.15 0.15 0.19
Goodwill amortization, net of taxes® — 0.22 0.22
Adjusted diluted EPS®® $ 1.48 $ 1.16 $ 0.94
Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA):©
EBIT® $ 256,386 $ 173,494 $ 130,687
Depreciation and amortization®® 45,263 74,070 73,973
EBITDA® 301,849 247,564 204,660
Special items® 23,195 23,161 27,199
Adjusted EBITDA®e $ 325,044 $ 270,725 $ 231,859
Net cash flows from operating activities $ 159,109 $ 153,087 $ 132,701
Advance purchases of pharmaceuticals (pre-buys)™® 52,291 29,958 —
Adjusted net cash flows from operating activities $ 211,400 $ 183,045 $ 132,701

The Financial Highlights information above should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Management’s

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(a) In accordance with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, Omnicare,
Inc. (Omnicare) discontinued amortization of goodwill as of January 1, 2002. Accordingly, no goodwill amortization was recorded during the
year ended December 31, 2002, Goodwill amortization is included in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, and totaled $33,199
($20.583 aftertax, or $0.22 per diluted share) and $32,670 ($20,582 aftertax, or $0.22 per diluted share), respectively.

(b) Special items include restructuring and other related charges. and other expense items, which management believes are either infrequent
occurrences or otherwise not related to the ongoing operations of Omnicare. See Notes 13 and 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for information concerning these special items.

(c) EBITDA represents earnings hefore interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. Omnicare believes that certain investors find EBITDA
to be a useful tool for measuring a company's ability to service its debt; however, EBITDA does not represent net cash flows from operating
activities, as defined by U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and should not be considered as a substitute for net income as an
indicator of Omnicare’s operating performance or operating cash flows as a measure of liquidity. Omnicare’s calculation of EBITDA may differ
from the calculation of EBITDA by others. See Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data for a reconciliation of EBITDA to net cash flows
from operating activities.

(d) Represents fourth quarter pre-buys for the noted year, primarily comprised of the purchasing of pharmaceuticals in advance of price increases.

. ADJUSTED NET
TOTAL ADJUSTED ADJUSTED ADJUSTED CASH FLOWS FROM
NET SALES EBITDA" NET INCOME"' DILUTED EPS* OPERATING ACTIVITIES"
(S millions) (S millions) (S miflons) (s {S millons)
3,000 350 150 1.50 250
2,500 300 120 120 200
2,000 B
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1,500 150 1
1,000 100 6 0.60 00 |
500 50 30 0.30 50 D [
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ta) ex<luding special itoms (a) oxcluding special items (a} excluding specal toms {b) excluding fourth quarter pre-buys

OMNICARE, INC. . 1




Corporate Highlights

Tenth Editien of the @mmnicare
@uidelines Published

Omnicare published the tenth edition of its proprietary clini-
cally based formulary, the Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutical

Slreng Financlal Perfeormance

Omnicare achieved record sales, earnings and cash flow in
2002. Adjusted net income, excluding the impact of account-
ing changes, restructuring charges and special items,

increased 28% to $140.3 million in 2002 and. on an adjusted Care Guidelines®. Tailored

diluted per share basis, reached $1.48, up 28%. This was solely to seniors, the formu-
achieved on a solid 21% increase in net sales to $2.6 billion lary contains more than
for the year. Net cash flows from operating activities, excluding 1,000 drug reviews and
advance purchases of pharmaceuticals in the fourth quarter, more than 200 rankings of
also reached an all-time record high of $211 .4 miliion. therapeutic classes most
relevant to the diseases of
aging. Drugs are catego-
rized on their clinical
In mid-January 2003, Omnicare successfully completed the effectiveness in improving
NCS was the fourth patient outcomes while
lowering costs. All clini-
cal recommendations
were once again made

acquisition of NCS HealthCare (NCS).
largest institutional pharmacy provider in the United States
and marks the largest acquisition Omnicare has made to date.
It significantly expands Omnicare's presence in the long-term ! !
care pharmacy market, increasing the number of beds served by the University of the
to more than 950,000 and annualized revenues to approxi-  Sciences in
Philadelphia exclusive-
ly for Omnicare. The Omnicare
Guidelines® has also been evaluated and
endorsed by the American Geriatrics Society.

GERIAT
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ARE cu:DE,_',’,'\‘,’E*gACEUnCA .

903 801710,

Acauisttieon of NCS HealthGare, (ne.

mately $3.3 billion. Given the anticipated realization of

economies of scale and cost synergies from the acquisition, it
is expected to be accretive to Omnicare’s diluted per share
earnings in 2003 and beyond.

BlE Lilly and Ceo. Presents
Cmmnicare Climfeal Researsh with a
@lebal Supplier Aweard

NCS HealthCare, Inc

Successiul Cempletion of Phase [l
Produclivity and Ceonselidaliicon Omnicare Clinical Research
received a 2002 Global
Supplier Award from Eli
Lilly and Co. One of just 18
suppliers chosen from a

Initiative
In 2002, Omnicare successfully completed Phase II of its pro-
Much smaller in scope
field of 6,000 worldwide,
et h Hitd] Omnicare’s clinical research
resulting in a more efficient operating infrastructure. The business was recognized as
combination of both the Phase I and Phase II productivity and outstanding for working
consolidation initiatives produced a more streamlined and closely with program and
globalized organization and created annual savings of produbct teams to ensure
approximately $63 million pretax. timely results. The award is
presented annually to key
suppliers who contribute to
Lilly's success.

ductivity and consolidation initiative.
than Phase I, completed in 2000, the Phase Il initiative
further reduced fixed costs and enhanced productivity,

Suceessivl Integration of American

Cmmnfecare Clinfeal Researal
Pharmaceuiical Services, Ine.

Ferms Strategliec Alllance with
In January of 2002, Omnicare acquired American

Levdem Far East BV
Pharmaceutical Services (APS). By year-end, Omnicare

Omunicare Clinical Research entered into a strategic alliance
with Loudon Far East (LFE) with operations in Shanghai,
successfully completed the integration of APS, reaping the
synergies expected. Moreover, Omnicare’s strong cash flow

China. LFE extends Omnicare Clinical Researchs current
allowed it to pay for the entire APS acquisition in

service offerings to 29 countries, expanding its geographic

reach in the Asia/Pacific region to provide clients with access
to large patient populations to accelerate the drug develop-
ment process. LFE further strengthens Omnicare Clinical
Research’s global presence, which now includes all major less tha vear
geographic regions of the world. § than one year.
_gﬂ% American Pharmaceutical Services, Inc.
’%ﬁ&? An Omnicare Company
OMNICARE, INC.

Loudon <D Far East




To Our Fellow Shareholders

Believe IT.

The year 2002
was outstanding.
Your company
achieved record
sales, earnings
and cash flow,
successiully
integrated the
acquisition of
American
Pharmaceutical
Services, Inc.
(APS), complet-
ed Phase II of
our productivity and consolidation initiative on time
and on target, and capped the year off with our
largest acquisition to date, NCS HealthCare, Inc.
(NCS).

The Year in Review

Net sales in 2002 increased 21% over the previous year,
reaching $2.6 billion. Net income of $125.9 million in 2002
was 69% higher than
2001, with diluted earn-
ings per share up 68% to
$1.33. After adjusting for
restructuring charges and
special items, as well as
the impact of accounting
changes, our adjusted net
income of $140.3 million
increased 28%, with
adjusted diluted earnings
per share reaching $1.48, also up 28%.

This year-over-year performance is a significant accom-
plishment in its own right. But we are also gratified that the
level of earnings we achieved in 2002 exceeded that of 1998,
our best year before the turmoil began in the entire long-term
care industry brought about by Medicare’s Prospective
Payment System.

Moreover, our financial position was again enhanced with
net cash flows from operating activities reaching $211.4
million in 2002 (adjusted to exclude $52.3 million in fourth-
quarter pre-buys of pharmaceuticals in advance of price
increases). Not only was this a record-setting level of cash
flow. but is. in our view, the best measure of the quality of
our earnings.

Based on the strength of our cash flow, we paid down
$120 million in bank debt this year. This represented the
entire remaining balance on our $500 million bank credit
facility. Looked at another way, the approximately $114

OMNICARE, INC.

ur growth strategies have been

bolstered by our efforts, over
the last several years, to broaden
our market presence, lower our
overall cost structure and enhance
our financial strength.

million spent for
the APS acquisition
in January of 2002
was paid in full
through Omnicare’s
cash flow in less
than one year.

Core Business
Performance
Our strong perfor-
mance in 2002 was
due to solid results
in both of our core
businesses. Sales
in Omnicare Senior Pharmacy Services, our institutional phar-
macy business, grew 21% in 2002 to $2.5 billion, and operat-
ing income totaled $288.2 million. Adjusted operating income,
excluding restructuring charges of $6.8 million, totaled $295.0
million for the 2002 year, up 20% from the comparable prior-
year amount (excluding goodwill amortization and special
items). Our results were driven by new contract additions,
increasing market penetration of newer drugs, sustained
growth in our clinical pro-
grams and the addition of
APS. We are pleased to
report that the integration
of APS is now complete
and has produced the
anticipated synergies.

Despite experiencing
some volatility in revenues
in the latter half of 2002
related to client-driven
delays or cancellation of certain projects, Ommnicare Clinical
Research, our CRO business, demonstrated solid revenue
growth and a substantial improvement in profitability for the
year. CRO revenues in 2002 of $165.5 million ($139.2 mil-
lion, excluding the impact of an accounting change for out-of-
pocket expenses, EITF No, 01-14, totaling $26.3 million) were
11% above 2001 on the same basis. Operating profit in 2002
totaled $4.6 million. Adjusted operating profit, excluding
restructuring charges of $16.4 million, totaled $21.0 million,
up 56% from the comparable prior-year amount (excluding
goodwill amortization). These results demonstrate how our
efforts to globalize and streamline the organization and reduce
fixed costs to better match expenses with revenues have paid
off. This was also accomplished without impairing quality as
evidenced by our receipt of Eli Lilly's “Lilly Global Supplier
Award” in recognition of the quality of services provided.

Our solid growth was highlighted by rapid expansion in
business among biotechnology companies as well as Japanese

3

| |
Joel K. Gemunder, President and
Chief Executive Officer



pharmaceutical manufacturers,
and the expansion of our global
presence into India and, in early
2003, into China. Omnicare
Clinical Research also entered
into several strategic partrer-

Beds Served
(Yearend) (thousands)

1,000

ships during the year that allow w
us to expand our capabilities in
electronic regulatory submis- 600
sions globally and in e-clinical

trial technologies that will help 400
shorten the drug development

cycle time and reduce costs. 200

147.6

]

1016

]

The performance of both of
our core businesses benefited
from the successful completion
of our Phase II productivity and
consolidation initiative. Phase II
reduced the work force by about 5%, as certain operating
facilities and functions were made redundant as we moved to
increase efficiency and productivity in both our business seg-
ments. The combination of both Phase 1 and Phase I produc-
tivity and consolidation initiatives has resulted in an 18%
work force reduction, a 32% reduction in operating facilities
and annualized savings of approximately $63 million pretax.

9.0 ok
3885

{1] Includes NCS aequisition.

Acquisition of NCS HealthCare, Ine.

In mid-January, 2003, we successfully completed the acquisi-
tion of NCS HealthCare after a long and arduous process. In
the end, it was well worth the time, effort and resources it
required, because NCS is a superior fit with Omnicare and will
create significant value for our customers and shareholders.

NCS represents the largest acquisition we have made in
our 14-year history of making institutional pharmacy acquisi-
tions. It significantly expands our presence in the long-term
care pharmacy market, increasing the number of beds served
by Omnicare by 269 to more than 950,000 and annualized
revenues by 24% to approximately $3.3 billion.

In addition to its large institutional pharmacy operation,
NCS also provides other business opportunities for
Omnicare. NCS adds a hospital pharmacy management busi-
ness that, when combined with our own, serves more than
40 hospitals in 21 states. It also brings Rescot, an informa-
tion technology business providing pharmacy operating soft-
ware to nearly 300 long-term care pharmacies across the
United States.

Also part of NCS is Care for Life®, a disease manage-
ment and specialty pharmaceutical distribution company that
specializes in chronic disease state management in the areas
of hemophilia, infectious diseases, mental health and respi-
ratory needs. Pharmaceuticals are distributed largely via
mail order, and pharmacists and nurses are available 24
hours a day, seven days a week for consulting and education.
We are excited by the potential of this business, as it affords

GROWING OUR CUSTOMER BASE

2165

88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98

us the opportunity to build upon
our own capabilities in specialty
pharmaceutical distribution. We
also see this business as a good
] strategic fit with our approach to

953"

754, . A .
move our clinical services into the

ambulatory population.

Moreover, from the acquisi-
tion of NCS, we anticipate realiz-
ing substantial economies of scale
and cost synergies in purchasing
of pharmaceuticals and in consoli-
dation of overlapping geographic
locations and redundant functions.
As a result, we expect this acqui-
sition to be accretive to diluted
earnings per share in 2003 and
beyond. As we go 10 press, the
process of integration is well under way.

631 6365 3420
35

™/

5787
)]

300.0

Omnicare’s Strategy for Growth

We have, over the last three years, been conservative in our
financial strategy and aggressive in our growth strategy. By
lowering our cost structure and managing the use of
Omnicare’s assets to maximize cash flow and return on capi-
tal, and by continually expanding clinical programs that lower
costs, we have not only protected and enhanced our financial
and operational health, we have also positioned the company
to significantly leverage top-line growth. Then too, these
actions have allowed us to unlock greater value from the
businesses we acquire.

As we look ahead, our strategy for growth remains
centered on three business platforms: distribution, clinical
services and information. By continuing to grow our core
pharmaceutical distribution business and then leveraging that
business through the development and expansion of clinical
and information services, we can create significant value for
patients, payors, clients and partners.

Operating Environment

We begin 2003 in a strong position. Nonetheless, we must
continue to be vigilant in monitoring key issues related to
healthcare funding, including the pressures on state Medicaid
budgets arising from economic downturn, growth in the
number of enrollees and the escalation of all healthcare costs,
most notably drug expenditures, as a result of an aging popu-
lation and the introduction of new, more efficacious but also
more expensive drugs. At the federal level. much debate
continues on the short- and long-term funding of the entire
Medicare program, including reimbursement for skilled nurs-
ing facilities. Then too, there is substantial national pressure
to implement some form of a Medicare drug benefit for
seniors. Given the magnitude of competing national priorities,
it remains difficult to predict the outcome or impact of any

OMNICARE, INC.




changes in healthcare policy relating to the future funding of
the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

What we do know is that pharmaceuticals remain the
most cost-effective means of treating the chronic illnesses of
the frailest members of our society and, as such, should be
considered nondiscretionary expenditures. With Omnicare’s
expertise in geriatric pharmaceutical care and cost manage-
ment, we have demonstrated to payors, including state
Medicaid programs, that our advanced clinical programs can
yield substantially lower drug costs while protecting and
enhancing the quality of care for beneficiaries. Accordingly,
Omnicare is well-positioned to help the nation face these
funding challenges.

Believe It! An Even Stronger Future

We long ago recognized that we must prepare for the enor-
mous wave of Baby
Boomers to reach age 65
and took clear and deci-
sive action to align
Omnicare’s growth
strategies with forecasted

gies have been bolstered
by our efforts, over the
past several years, to in h@@]@h@ap@,
broaden our market

presence, lower our overall cost structure and enhance our
financial strength. These actions have secured Omnicare’s
leadership position in the industry and placed us at the
forefront of geriatric pharmaceutical care.

We see our growth opportunities as even greater in the
years ahead because our strategies are aligned with the eco-
nomic interests and demographic trends in healthcare. Proper
drug utilization is the most cost-effective means of treating the
elderly and improving the quality of their lives. As such, our
business offers meaningful solutions to containing healthcare
costs while ensuring the well-being of the nation's growing
senior population — both for those residing in long-term care
facilities and those living independently.

Those over 65 consume a disproportionately high level of
healthcare services when compared to those under 65. Given
demographic trends, some project that seniors will account for
half of all healthcare expenditures in the not too distant
future. Yet, there is much that can be done to stem the tide.
Today, the nation spends more than $177 billion on medica-
tion-related problems that result in increased hospitalizations,
physician visits and lab tests. Moreover, because we have a
shortage of trained geriatric healthcare professionals, the
elderly are often misdiagnosed or undertreated; symptoms are
overlooked or written off as a normal part of the aging pro-
cess. Treating the elderly is a specialized business.

Omnicare can help bridge this gap. Our pharmacists are
specialists in geriatric pharmacotherapy — they understand the

OMNICARE, INC.

e see our growth opportuni-

ties as even greater in the
vears ahead because our strategies
wends. our erowtn siwate-  AI'€ @ligned with the economic
interests and demographic trends

unique needs of the elderly. They can identify at-risk seniors
and work to protect their health and quality of life, all while
reducing costs for the healthcare system. Moreover, the pace
of new drug discovery will drive continued outsourcing of
research and development services, which bodes well for the
CRO business, particularly as pharmaceutical manufacturers
focus more heavily on medications that address the afflictions
of aging. We are proud to be part of an industry that cares
for the elderly, and we are committed firmly to their health
and well-being.

Omnicare stands ready to meet the challenges of our
aging population. The unbelievable demographic and health-
care trends portrayed on the following pages will serve o
create even greater demand for our business. The theme of
this year’s report, "Believe It," refers to these powerful growth
drivers, but it also refers to the power within Omnicare to
achieve our growth
objectives.

For our employees, it
means that through
persistence and determi-
nation, anything is
possible.

For our investors, it
means Omnicare is
aligned with industry
trends and has the finan-
cial strength to expand the business.

For our customers, it means Omnicare can provide the
most appropriate pharmaceutical care while simultaneously
helping to lower costs.

Most important, for our communities, it means Omnicare
is committed to ensuring the health and well-being of those
over the age of 65.

Believe It!

oy

Edward L. Hutton Joel K. Gemundcr
Chairman President and
Chief Executive Officer

March 25, 2003
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Jmnicare provides pharmaceutical care that
< -zbles the elderly to live longer, healthier and
Jer-quality lives cost-effectively, and it has the

[N I N

“inical and fnancial resources to meet the

growing demand for ifs services.

ith the senior population in the United

States expected to grow dramatically in

the next 30 years, the need for pharma-

ceuticals to combat diseases associat-
ed with aging is also increasing. Pharmaceuticals
remain the most clinically efficient and cost-effec-
tive means of treating chronic illnesses of the
elderly, and Omnicare is well-positioned to meet the
needs of the growing senior population.

The medical needs of older people are very
different from those who are younger. The body's
ability to metabolize, absorb and eliminate drugs
changes dramatically with age. Seniors also
experience a higher incidence of multiple chronic
diseases, driving greater consumption of prescrip-
tion and over-the-counter medications. In fact,
the average number of co-morbidities, or medical
conditions, among the nursing home population
totals nearly eight. Accordingly, the average
number of prescriptions used by those over age 65
is substantially higher than that of the under-65
population. Today’s challenge is to ensure that
medications are appropriately and adequately
managing the ailments of seniors.

Toward this end, Omnicare’s core business,
Omnicare Senior Pharmacy Services, dispenses and
delivers appropriate medications

to those residing in skilled nurs- U.S. DRUG Omnicare’s position as the industry

) : - e UTILIZATION BY s .

ing and assisted living facilities AGE GROUP leader in information technology,

and to those in rural hospitals 24 clinical expertise and geographic
Under Age 25 . .

hours a day, seven days a week, 3% Age63/5-34 reach, enabling Omnicare to serve

365 days a year. Through its
nationwide network of pharma-
cies, Omnicare purchases,

65-74
i
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packages and dispenses drugs in unit-dose packag-
ing and checks each prescription for adverse
interactions or for a more appropriate drug
therapy. Beyond just distribution, however,
Omnicare’s consultant pharmacists provide monthly
resident drug regimen reviews and report any irreg-
ularities or recommendations to the physician.
Further, these consultant pharmacists provide
direction on drug handling and dispensing in the
facility, assistance with state and federal regulatory
compliance, training of facility staff, customized
quality-assurance programs and, most important,
application of Omnicare’s clinical and health man-
agement programs to the residents it serves.

Additionally, Omnicare offers clinically
advanced, ancillary services to long-term care
facilities that broaden the range of services they
offer, helping them to manage costs while main-
taining the highest standards of care. Such
services include infusion therapy, respiratory
services, Medicare Part B products for enteral
nutrition, wound care and ostomy, and on-site
kidney dialysis, as well as clinical and financial
software services.

The acquisition of NCS HealthCare, in ear]y
2003, also brought an array of unique information

services, This served to enhance

its customers even more effectively
now and in the future.




= spent on drugs in the United
- JStates, $1.50 is spent on
adverse outcomes of inappro-

B priate therapy. Therapeutic -

system more than $177
billion annually.
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The real cost of drug therapy is not just the cost of
the drug and its distribution; it includes the cost
of adverse outcomes and therapeutic failures.
Omnicare offers the means to identify
underdiagnosed and undertreated conditions
and to recommend more effective drug therapies.

pproximately 35 percent of people over
age 65 experience adverse drug reactions,
and recent studies have shown that nearly
one in every five seniors receive prescrip-
tions for inappropriate drugs. Yet, there is clear
evidence that appropriate pharmaceutical care can
make a difference in the lives of the elderly. With a
focus on appropriate drug use — not just the cost of
medication — Omnicare strives to help reduce
overall healthcare costs related to increased hospi-
talizations, invasive procedures, physician visits
and nursing time. Omnicare is able to lower costs
while improving care through the use of its unique
Geriatric Pharmaceutical Care Guidelines®, its
proprietary outcomes algorithm technology and its
comprehensive health management programs.

Omnicare’s consultant pharmacists are experts
in geriatric pharmacotherapy and the specialized
medication needs of the elderly. Armed with these
sophisticated clinical tools, they can not only
resolve but prevent medication-related problems,
achieving positive health outcomes.

The Omnicare Geriatric Pharmaceutical Care
Guidelines®, now in its tenth edition, is the first
clinically based formulary tailored to the geriatric
patient. It ranks drugs based solely on clinical
effectiveness and only then on relative cost. There
is significant compliance
among physicians who use
the Omnicare Guidelines® i
as an aid in choosing the
best clinical therapy at the

Number of prescriptions

U.S. PRESCRIPTIONS
BY AGE GROUP

{per annum)

zﬂm:mDDDDD

lowest, cost for each resident, thereby strengthen-
ing Omnicare’s relationship with the facility, the
payor, the resident and the physician. All clinical
recommendations in the formulary are made by the
University of the Sciences in Philadelphia, and it
has been consistently reviewed and recommended
by the American Geriatrics Society. Its credibility
has allowed Omnicare to deal with drug pricing
issues in a therapeutically sound way, enabling
physicians to balance both cost and care.

Omnicare’s health management programs, a
combination of the Omnicare Guidelines®, resident
care plans and its proprietary outcomes algorithm
technology, target some of the most prevalent
diseases of aging. Omnicare’s proprietary technol-
0gy uses nearly 4,000 treatment algorithms (o
electronically screen and identify residents at risk
for a given disease state, such as congestive heart
failure, depression, stroke, 0steoporosis or
Alzheimer’s disease. This data is critical in assist-
ing Omnicare pharmacists to identify underdiag-
nosed and undertreated conditions among
residents and make recommendations for optimat
drug therapy.

While health management programs may
require increased use of certain drugs, Omnicare’s
programs can significantly reduce overall costs to
the healthcare system and,
most important, improve the
health of seniors.

0-5 6-14 15-24 25-34 35-44 A5-54 55-64 65-74 75+
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Omy %@7@ s able to apply its vast clinical resources,
~smsive medical and pharmacy data and

expers.” - n geriatric drug therapy beyond the
~rsing facuily to improve pharmaceutical care for
seniors who live independently.

hile pharmaceuticals are the treatment
of choice for the chronic illnesses of
seniors, their use also carries risks -
o risks that are multiplied by the large
-~~~ number of medications used by seniors. In skilled
o nursing and many assisted living facilities, consul-
’ tant pharmacists protect the health and quality of
Wife of residents by preventing medication-related
X preblems. But only eight percent of those over age
. 60 réside in nursing homes or assisted living
facilities.
This senior population, living independently, is
highly susceptible to drug-related problems
& _becausc they manage their own healthcare, ofien
T1ader the care of multiple health practitioners.
He al admissions due to adverse consequences
and therapeutic failures related to drug therapy are
imes higher in seniors than in the general
lation.
over, of the 32 million Americans over 65
Who live independently, approximately 40 percent
?"’are covered by employer-sponsored retirement
healthcare programs. In 2003, corporations are
expected to spend $24 billion on drug benefits
under these programs, and that num-
ber is projected to grow to $40 billion

WHERE SENIORS

the long-term care facility.

To address this need, Omnicare formed
Omnicare Senior Health Outcomes®™ 10 target this
employer-based market by proving its ability to
optimize drug therapy and create measurably
better health outcomes for the independent eiderly
while lowering overall costs for clients. Using its
proven clinical programs — the Omnicare
Guidelines®, outcomes algorithm technology and
health management programs — Omnicare provides
services for corporate retirees that reduce unnec-
essary and inappropriate medications, optimize
therapy for certain at-risk groups and make thera-
peutic interventions that prevent more costly and
traumatic healthcare events. For example, nearly
all hip fractures in the elderly are fall-related, and
one in three people over the age of 65 experiences
a fall-related injury. These injuries can often lead
to reduced mobility and independence or, worse,
hospitalization. Omnicare Senior Health
Outcomes®™ is working to significantly reduce the
number of fall-and fracture-related injuries by ana-
lyzing drug-related risk factors among retirees,
employees and dependents, age 55 years and older,
and working with both those at risk for
a fracture and their physicians to

by 2009. RESIDE improve the quality of care provided.
Reining in these rapidly growing  aqissed Living Skilled Nursing Today, Omnicare serves more than
costs and, at the same time, helping F°§gjes Fag"/jes 600,000 retirees, employees and

seniors live longer, higher-quality
lifestyles represents a tremendous
opportunity for Omnicare to apply its
geriatric pharmaceutical case man-
agement services beyond the walls of

Independent

Lhi
92"'2
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dependents of major corporations who
live independently. Significant growth
potential exists as employers look for
proven methods to reduce overall costs
while protecting the health of retirees.
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drugs targeted
at the diseases
of aging are now
in the pipeline.
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As the elderly population grows, pharmaceutical
manufacturers are expanding their efforts to
introduce drugs to combat the diseases of aging.
Omnicare works hand-in-hand with
pharmaceutical manufacturers and biotechnology
sompanies, providing clinical trial management and
complete data management and analysis.

he pharmaceutical industry today faces a

number of significant issues: the substan-

tial number of drugs coming off patent, the

need to accelerate new drug introductions,
and the escalating costs of bringing new drugs to
market. Moreover, biotechnology companies often
lack the research and development infrastructure
to advance their maturing compounds. These
issues all represent opportunities for outsourcing
of drug research activities and growth for the
contract research industry.

Omnicare Clinical Research, one of the leading
clinical research organizations (CROs) worldwide,
provides comprehensive drug research services
(Phases I-1V) in all major therapeutic categories
for pharmaceutical manufacturers and biotechnol-
ogv companies. It has now filed more than 60
domestic NDAs (new drug applications) and com-
pleted 140 international filings, with a 100 percent
success rate.

As part of Omnicare, it possesses unique mar-
ketplace advantages. Omnicare Clinical Research
has access to Omnicare’s clinical expertise, its
strong relationships with drug manufacturers, and
the knowledge and data the company has on the
geriau;ic population.

Omnicare’s extensive knowledge of the geri-
atric population is embedded in a
robust database, now comprising
nearly 140 million clean data sets,
which, when stripped of patient-specif-
ic information to protect patient
confidentiality, provides a wealth of
information on the effectiveness of
drugs for the elderly. Through data-
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mining services, Omnicare offers this information
to pharmaceutical manufacturers and payors,
enabling them to study predictive models and out-
comes of drug therapy.

Moreover, while pharmaceuticals are the treat-
ment of choice for the chronic diseases of aging,
older people are vastly under-represented in
clinical trials for many of these drugs due to the
difficulty presented by the numerous co-morbidities
in seniors as well as the lack of organized access
to this population for clinical trials. While seniors
account for approximately 50 percent of national
drug consumption, representation in clinical
research has, in many cases, averaged only 10 to
20 percent. In early 2003, in response to these
issues and upcoming government mandates,
Omnicare Clinical Research formed its
PeriApproval and Geriatric Clinical Studies Group
to focus on the needs of geriatric-drug research.
As part of its drug development services, Omnicare
provides organized and rapid access to the elderly
population. It can quickly identify potential trial
participants through its extensive database of geri-
atric healthcare professionals who also may serve
as potential investigators. Moreover, Omnicare
has to date identified a network of nearly 400
client skilled nursing and assisted living facilities
to conduct geriatric clinical trials.

As more and more drugs targeted at
diseases of the aging are being intro-
duced into the pipeline, Omnicare will
be a critical link between pharmaceuti-
cal manufacturers and the future care
and health of the elderly.

00 02

Years
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Report of incdependent Accountants

PRICEAVATERHOUSE(COPERS

To the Stockholders and
Board of Directors of Omnicare, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income and stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Omnicare, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2002
and 2001, and the resulis of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Companys management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted

in the United States of America, which require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
changed its method of accounting for goodwill.

?WWLLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, Illinois
January 31, 2003
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
{in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Sales $2,606,450 $2,159,131 $1,971,348
Reimbursable out-of-pockets 20,304 23,905 16,491

Total net sales 2,632,734 2,183,036 1,887,839
Cost of sales 1,918,397 1,579,732 1,445,955
Reimbursed out-of-pocket expenses 26,304 23.905 16,491

Total direct costs 1,941,701 1,603,637 1,462,446
Gross profit 691,053 579,399 525,393
Selling, general and administrative expenses 411,272 349,545 334,837
Goodwill amortization (Note 5) — 33,199 32,670
Restructuring and other related charges (Note 13) 23,195 18,344 27,199
Other expense (Note 14) —_ 4,817 —
Operating income 256,586 173,494 130,687
Investment income 3,276 2,615 1,910
Interest expense (56,811) (56,324) (55,074)
Income before income taxes 203,051 119,785 77,523
Income taxes 77,145 45,514 28,706
Net income $ 125,908 $ 74271 $ 48,817
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.3¢ $ 0.80 $ 0.53

Diluted $ 1.33 $ 0.79 $ 0.53
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding;

Basic 94,168 93,124 92,012

Diluted 94,903 93,758 92,012

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
{In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 137,936 $ 168,396
Restricted cash 3,147 2,922
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $68,593 (2001-$45,573) 322,857 478,077
Unbilled receivables 25,062 23,621
Inventories 190,464 149,134
Deferred income tax benefits 18,621 28,147
Other current assets 103,471 71,297
Total current assets 1,001,558 927,594
Properties and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation of $177,870
(2001-$160,164) 139,908 155,073
Goodwill 1,188,907 1,123,800
Other noncurrent assets 07.212 83,809
Total assets $2,427,5383 $2,290,276
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 175,648 $ 140,327
Current debt 110 393
Accrued employee compensation 22,627 25,015
Deferred revenue 25,254 39,338
Income taxes payable 6,837 9,256
Other current liabilities 66,174 54,944
Total current liabilities 296,650 269,273
Long-term debt 187 30,669
5.0% convertible subordinated debentures, due 2007 345.000 345,000
8.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2011 373,000 375,000
Deferred income tax liabilities 84,071 81,495
Other noncurrent liabilities 51,615 39,056
Total liabilities 1,152,523 1,140,493
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, $1 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 95,441,400 shares issued
(2001-94,671,800 shares issued) 03,441 94,672
Paid-in capital 737,421 722,701
Retained earnings 498,856 381,441
1,331,718 1,198,814
Treasury stock, at cost-1,139,900 shares (2001-986,600 shares) (23,471) (19,824)
Deferred compensation (29,018) (24,273)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (4,167) (4,934)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,275,062 1,149,783
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,427,385 $2,290,276

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

16 OMNICARE, INC.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
{In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $125,906 $ 74,271 $ 48,817
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 33,129 32,164 32,211
Amortization 12,134 41,906 41,762
Provision for doubtful accounts 31,163 25,490 26,729
Deferred tax provision 15,428 17,305 19,767
Non-cash portion of restructuring charges 9,060 2,811 6,804
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from acquisition of businesses:
Accounts receivable and unbilled receivables (41,788) (50,774) (44,314}
Inventories (28,261) (12,949) (8,988)
Current and noncurrent assets (37,046) 6,292 (10,710)
Accounts payable 34,829 15,130 11,115
Accrued employee compensation 517 (1,993) {14,436)
Deferred revenue (14,084) 11,005 4,012
Current and noncurrent liabilities 18,122 (7,571) 19,932
Net cash flows from operating activities 159,109 153,087 132,701
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses (127,783) (20,263) (41,664)
Capital expenditures (24,848) (26,222) (32,423)
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and severance
costs, net of payments out of the trust (223) (622) (2,300)
Other 273 305 271
Net cash flows from investing activities (132,383) (46,802) (76,116)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 90,000 70,000 —
Proceeds from long-term borrowings — 375,000 —_
Payments on line of credit facilities (120,000) (475,000) (30,000)
Principal payments on long-term obligations (214) (2,898) (1,838)
Fees paid for financing arrangements - (16,254) (635)
Proceeds from (payments for) stock awards and exercise of stock
~options, net of stock tendered in payment 667 8,065 (1,011)
Dividends paid (8,491) (8,468) (8.293)
Other 72 — —
Net cash flows from financing activities {37,966) {49,555) (41,777)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 780 59 (468)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (30,460} 56,789 14,340
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year-unrestricted 168.396 111,607 97.267
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year-unrestricted $137,936 $168,396 $111,607
The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
OMNICARE, INC. 17



Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equily

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies
(In thousands, except per share data)
Accumulated

Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Deferred Comprehensive  Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Stock Compensation Income Equity
Balance al January 1, 2000 $61,612 $684,419 $275.114  $(6.950) $(14,098) $(1,717)  $1,028,380
Dividends paid ($0.0S per share) — — (8.293) — — — (8,293)
Stock acquired for benefit plans — — — (88) — — (88)
Exercise of stock options 173 1,559 — (1,882) — — (150)
Stock awards, net of amortization 946 7,161 — (1,840) (4,817) — 1,450
Other — (444) — (48) — — (492)
Subtotal 92,731 692,695 266,821  (10,808) (18.915) (1,717) 1,020,807
Net income — — 48,817 — — — 48,817
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment  — — — — — (1,694) (1,694)
Unrealized appreciation in fair
value of investments — — — — — 493 493
Comprehensive income (loss) — — 48,817 — — (1,201) 47,616
Balance at December 31, 2000 52,731 692,695 315,638 (10,808) (18,915) (2,918) 1,068,423
Dividends paid ($0.09 per share) — — (8,468) — — — (8,468)
Stock acquired for benefit plans — — — (83) — — (83)
Exercise of stock options - 1,430 20,691 — (6,614) — —_ 15,507
Stock awards, net of amortization 511 9,747 — (2,319) (5,358) — 2,581
Other — (432) — — — — (432)
Subtotal 94,672 722,701 307,170  (19,824) (24,273) (2,918) 1,077,528
Net income — — 74,271 — — — 74,271
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment  — — — — — 59 59
Unrealized appreciation in fair
value of investments — — — — — 208 208
Equity adjustment for minimum
pension liability — — — — — (2,283) (2,2883)
Comprehensive income (loss) — — 74,271 — — (2,016) 72,255
Balance at DPecember 31, 2001 94,672 722,701 381,441 (19,824) (24,273) (4,934) 1,149,783
Dividends paid ($0.09 per share) — — (8,491) — — — (8.491)
Stock acquired for benefit plans — — — (112) — — (112)
Exercise of stock options 229 4,055 — (313) — — 3,971
Stock awards, net of amortization 540 10,807 — (3.222) (4,745) —_ 3,380
Other — (142) — — — — (142)
Subtotal 95,441 737,421 372,850 (23,471) (29,018) (4,934) 1,148,389
Net income — — 125,806 — — — 125,906
Other comprehensive income (10ss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment — — — — —_ — 781 781
Unrealized appreciation in fair
value of investments — — — — — 1,274 1,274
Equity adjustment for minimum
pension liability — — —_ — — (1,288) (1,288)
Comprehensive income — — 125,906 — — 767 126,673

Balance at December 31, 2002  $93,441 $737,421 $498,856 $(23,471) $(29,018) $(4,167) $1,275,062

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Description of Business and
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Omnicare, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Omnicare” or
the “Company”) provide geriatric pharmaceutical care and
clinical research services. At Becember 31, 2002, Omnicare
served long-term care facilities comprising approximately
754,000 beds in 45 states, making Omnicare the nation’s
largest provider of professional pharmacy, related consulting
and data management services for skilled nursing, assisted
living and other institutional healthcare providers. The
Company also provided clinical research services to the
pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries in 28 countries
worldwide at December 31, 2002.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Transiation of Foreign Financial Statements
Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign operations
are translated at the vear-end rate of exchange, and the
income statements are translated at the average rate of
exchange for the year. Gains or losses from transiating
foreign currency financial statements are accumulated in
a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Cash BEquivalents
Cash equivalents include all investments in highly liquid
instruments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash represents cash transferred to separate
irrevocable trusts for settlement of employee health and
severance costs.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of purchased pharmaceuticals
and medical supplies held for sale to customers and are
stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFQ") method.

Omnicare uses a periodic inventory system. Physical
inventories are typically performed on a monthly basis at all
pharmacy sites, and in all cases at least once a quarter. Cost
of goods sold is recorded based on the actual results of the
physical inventory counts, and is estimated during those
circumstances when a physical inventory is not performed in
a particular month. The Company evaluates various criteria
in developing estimated cost of goods sold during non-
inventory months, including the historical cost of goods sold
trends based on prior physical inventory results; a review of
cost of goods sold information reflecting current customer
contract terms; and consideration and analysis of changes in
customer base, product mix, payor mix, state Medicaid and
third-party insurance reimbursement levels or other issues

OMNICARE, INC.

that may impact cost of goods sold. Actual costs of goods
sold have not varied significantly from estimated amounts in
non-inventory months.

Properties and Equipment

Properties and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance,
repairs, renewals and betterments that do not materially
prolong the useful lives of the assets are charged to expense
as incurred. Depreciation of properties and equipment is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which range from five to ten years
for computer equipment and software, machinery and
equipment, and furniture and fixtures. Buildings and building
improvements are depreciated over forty years, and leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease
terms, or their useful lives. The Company capitalizes certain
costs that are directly associated with the development of
internally developed software, representing the historical cost
of these assets. Once the software is completed and placed
into service, such costs are amortized over the estimated
useful lives, ranging from five to ten years.

Business Combinations

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations” ("SFAS 141").
SFAS 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001. Use of the pooling-of-interests methods is no longer
permitted. SFAS 141 also includes guidance on the initial
recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in a business combination that is
completed after June 30, 2001. The Company has adopted
SFAS 141 for business combinations. The net assets and
operating results of acquired businesses have heen included
in the Company’s financial statements from the date of
acquisition.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the
Company to credit risk consist principally of interest-bearing
cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of
default by the financial institutions or issuers of cash and
cash equivalents to the extent recorded on the balance sheet.
At any given point in time, the Company has cash on deposit
with financial institutions, and cash invested in high quality
short-term money market funds and U.S. government-backed
repurchase agreements, generally having original maturities
of three months or less, in order to minimize its credit risk.

The Company establishes allowances for doubtful
accounts based on historical credit losses and specifically
identified credit risks. Management reviews this allowance on
an ongoing basis for appropriateness, and such losses have
been within management's expectations. For the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, no single customer
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

accounted for 10% or more of revenues. The Company
generally does not require collateral,

Approximately one-half of Omnicare’s pharmacy services
billings are directly reimbursed by government sponsored
programs. These programs include state Medicaid and, to a
lesser extent, the federal Medicare programs. The remainder
of Omnicare’s billings are paid or reimbursed by individual
residents, long-term care facilities and other third party
payors, including private insurers. A portion of these
revenues also are indirectly dependent on government
programs. The table below represents the Company’s
approximated payor mix for the last three years:

2002 2001 2000
State Medicaid programs 46% 44% 43%
Private pay and long-term
care facilities® 44% 44% 46%
Federal Medicare programs'” 2% 3% 3%
Other private sources® 8% 9% 8%
Totals 100% 100% 100%

(a) Includes payments from skilled nursing facilities on behalf of
their federal Medicare program-eligible residents.

(b) Includes direct billing for medical supplies.

{c) Includes the Company’s contract research organization revenues.

Leases

Leases that substantially transfer all of the benefits and
risks of ownership of property to Omnicare or otherwise meet
the criteria for capitalization under U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) are accounted for as capital
leases. An asset is recorded at the time a capital lease is
entered into together with its related long-term obligation to
reflect its purchase and financing. Property and equipment
recorded under capital leases are depreciated on the same
basis as previously described. Rental payments under
operating leases are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets

Intangible assets are comprised primarily of goodwill,
noncompete agreements and customer relationship assets,
all originating from business combinations accounted for
as purchase transactions. Effective January 1, 2002, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”). In accordance with SFAS
142, goodwill is no longer amortized but instead reviewed
for impairment at least annually and upon the occurrence
of an event that indicates impairment may have occurred.
Intangible assets that will continue to be amortized under
SFAS 142 are amortized using the straight-line method over
their useful lives of 4.7 to 10.0 years.

Debt issuance costs are included in other assets and are
amortized using the effective interest method over the life of
the related debt.

20

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” long-lived
assets such as property and equipment, software {(acquired
and internally-developed) and investments are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when
estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less
than its carrying amount. No impairment losses have been
recognized in the periods presented.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts
receivable and unbilled receivables, the carrying value of
these items approximates their fair value. The fair value of
restricted funds held in trust for settlement of the Company’s
pension obligations is based on quoted market prices of the
investments held by the trustee. For accounts payable, the
carrying value approximates fair value. The fair value of the
Companys’s line of credit facilities approximates their carrying
value, as the effective interest rate fluctuates with changes in
market rates. The fair value of the convertible subordinated
debentures and the senior subordinated notes, respectively,
was $329.0 million and $401.3 million at December 31,
2002, as determined by quoted market rates on that date.

Revenue Recognition

Pharmacy Services

Revenue is recognized when products or services are
delivered or provided to the customer. A significant portion
of the Company’s revenues from sales of pharmaceutical
and medical products is reimbursable from state Medicaid
and, to a lesser extent, the federal Medicare programs. The
Company monitors its revenues and receivables from
these reimbursement sources, as well as other third-party
insurance payors, and records an estimated contractual
allowance for certain sales and receivable balances.
Accordingly, the total net sales and receivables reported
in the Company's financial statements are recorded at the
amount ultimately expected to be received from these payors.
Contractual allowances are adjusted to actual as cash is
received and claims are settled. The Company evaluates
several criteria in developing the estimated contractual
allowances on a monthly basis, including historical trends
based on actual claims paid, current contract and
reimbursement terms and changes in customer base and
payor/product mix.

Contract Research Services

A portion of the Company’s revenues are earned by
performing services under contracts with various
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, medical device and
diagnostics companies, based on contract terms. Most of the
contracts provide for services to be performed on a units of
service basis. These contracts specifically identify the units of
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Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements

gervice and unit pricing. Under these contracts, revenue is
generally recognized upon completion of the units of service,
unless the units of service are performed over an extended
period of time. For extended units of service, revenue is
recognized based on labor hours expended as a percentage
of total labor hours expected to be expended. For time-and-
materials contracts, revenue is recognized at contractual
hourly rates, and for fixed-price contracts revenue is
recognized using a method similar to that used for extended
units of service. The Company’s contracts provide for price
renegotiations upon scope of work changes. The Company
recognizes revenue related to these scope changes when
underlying services are performed and realization is assured.
In a number of cases, clients are required to make
termination payments in addition to payments for services
already rendered. Any anticipated losses resulting from
contract performance are charged to earnings in the period
identified. Billings and payments are specified in each
contract. Revenue recognized in excess of billings is
classified as unbilled receivables, while billings in excess

of revenue are classified as deferred revenue on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In accordance
with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF”) Issue No. 01-14,
“Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements
Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred” (“EITF No.
01-14"), the Company has recorded reimbursements received
for “out-of-pocket” expenses on a grossed-up basis in the
income statement as revenues and expenses, and has
adjusted the prior year income statements to reflect the
impact of EITF No. 01-14.

Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset
and liability method under which deferred income taxes are
recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences
by applying enacted statutory tax rates to differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Stock-Based Employee Compensation

At December 31, 2002, the Company has three stock-
based employee compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 8. As permitted per U.S. GAAP, the
Company accounts for these plans under the recognition
and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board
{"APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (“APB 25”), and related Interpretations. No
stock-based employee compensation cost for stock options is
reflected in net income as all options granted under the plans
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income
and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), for stock options
(in thousands, except per share data):
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For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported  $123,906  $74.271  $48,817
Deduct: Total stock-based

employee compensation

expense determined under

fair value based method

for all options, net of

related tax effects (7,835) (3,528) (5.635)
Pro forma net income $118,071 $70,743  $43,182
Earnings per share:

Basic - as reported $ 134 $ 080 $ 053

Basic - pro forma $ 125 $ 076 $ 047

Diluted - as reported $ 133 3% 079 $ 053

Diluted - pro forma $ 124 $ 075 § 047

The fair value of each option at the grant date is
estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
with the following weighted average assumptions used for
grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000

Volatility 63% 64% 61%
Risk-free interest rate 3.1% 3.75% 5.0%
Dividend yield 0.4% 0.4% 0.4%
Expected term of options

{in vears) 3.5 4.9 4.0
Weighted average fair value

per option $14.80 $10.97 $8.36

The above pro forma information is based on the
circumstances and assumptions in effect for each of the
respective periods and, therefore, is not necessarily

" representative of the actual effect of SFAS 123 on net

income or earnings per share in future years.

Comprehensive Income
The accumulated aftertax other comprehensive income
(loss) adjustments at December 31, 2002 and 2001, net of
aggregate tax benefits of $1.0 million and $1.0 million,
respectively, by component and in the aggregate, follows
(in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001

Cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments $(2,571)  $(3.352)
Unrealized appreciation in fair value

of investments 1,975 701
Equity adjustment for minimum

pension liability (3,571) (2,283)
Total accumulated other comprehensive

loss adjustments, net $(4,167) $(4.934)
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Use of Estimates in the Preparation of
Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods, and amounts reported in the accompanying notes.
Significant estimates underlying the accompanying
consolidated financial statements include the allowance for
doubtful accounts; the net carrying value of inventories; the
goodwill impairment assessment; accruals pursuant to the
Company's restructuring initiatives; employee benefit plan
assumptions and reserves; current and deferred income tax
assets, liabilities and provisions; and various other operating
allowances and accruals (including health and property/casualty
insurance accruals). Actual results could differ from those
estimates depending upon certain risks and uncertainties.

Potential risks and uncertainties, many of which are
beyond the control of Omnicare include, but are not
necessarily limited to, such factors as overall economic,
financial and business conditions; delays in reimbursement
by the government and other payors to customers and
Omnicare; the overall financial condition of Omnicare’s
customers; the effect of new government regulations,
executive orders and/or legislative initiatives, including those
relating to reimbursement and drug pricing policies and in
the interpretation and application of such policies; efforts
by payors to control costs; the outcome of litigation; other
contingent liabilities; loss or delay of contracts pertaining to
the Company’s Contract Research Organization (“CRO” or
“CRO Services”) segment for regulatory or other reasons;
currency fluctuations between the U.S. dollar and other
currencies; changes in tax law and regulation; access to
capital and financing; the demand for Omnicare’s products
and services; pricing and other competitive factors in the
industry; variations in costs or expenses; and changes in
accounting rules and standards.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission
of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement
updates, clarifies and simplifies existing accounting
pronouncements. This Statement is effective for the Company
beginning January 1, 2003. The adoption of the standard did
not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” ("SFAS 1467). SFAS 146 addresses the recognition,
measurement, and reporting of costs that are associated
with exit and disposal activities, including costs related to
terminating a contract that is not a capital lease and

22

termination benefits that employees who are involuntarily
terminated receive under the terms of a one-time benefit
arrangement that is not an ongoing benefit arrangement or
an individual deferred-compensation contract. SFAS 146
supersedes EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to
Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring)” and requires liabilities associated with exit
and disposal activities to be expensed as incurred rather than
at the date of the commitment to an exit or disposal plan.
SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities of the
Company that are initiated after December 31, 2002,

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisition of Certain Financial Institutions,” which is
not applicable to the Company.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS 123" (“SFAS 148”).
While limited in scope, SFAS 148 provides additional
transition guidance for those entities that elect to voluntarily
adopt the accounting provisions of SFAS 123. The standard
is intended to encourage the adoption of the provisions of
SFAS 123 by providing three transitional implementation
methodologies. Even for those companies choosing not to
adopt the provisions of SFAS 123, SFAS 148 includes new
disclosure requirements related to a company’s issuance of
stock compensation. The transition and annual disclosure
provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2002. The new interim disclosure
provisions are effective for the first interim period beginning
after December 15, 2002. The disclosure provisions of SFAS
148 have been incorporated into the notes to consolidated
financial statements and Omnicare currently intends to
continue accounting for stock-based compensation plans in
accordance with APB 25 and related Interpretations, as
permitted by U.S. GAAP.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness
of Others” (“FIN 45”), which expands previously issued
accounting guidance and disclosure requirements for certain
guarantees. FIN 45 requires Omnicare to recognize an initial
liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed by issuing
a guarantee. The provision for initial recognition and
measurement of the liability will be applied on a prospective
basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002. The disclosure provisions of FIN 45 have been
incorporated into the notes to consolidated financial
statements, and its implementation has not had a material
impact on the Companys financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”), which
is not applicable to the Company.
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Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been
made to conform with the current year presentation.

Note 2 - Acquisitions

Since 1988, the Company has been involved in a program
to acquire providers of pharmaceutical products and related
pharmacy management services and medical supplies to
long-term care facilities and their residents. The Company's
strategy has included the acquisition of freestanding
institutional pharmacy businesses as well as other assets,
generally insignificant in size, which have been combined
with existing pharmacy operations to augment, their internal
growth. From time to time, the Company may acquire other
businesses such as long-term care software companies,
contract research organizations, pharmacy consulting
companies and medical supply companies, which
complement the Company’s core business. During the year
ended December 31, 2002, the Company completed one
acquisition, which was an institutional pharmacy business
that was accounted for using the purchase method. No
acquisitions of businesses were completed during the vears
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

In accordance with accounting rules, all business
combinations entered into after July 1, 2001 are accounted
for using the purchase method. For acquisitions accounted
for as purchases, including insignificant acquisitions, the
purchase price paid for each has been allocated to the fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
Purchase price allocations are subject to final determination
within one year after the acquisition date.

In January 2002, Omnicare completed the acquisition
of the assets comprising the pharmaceutical business of
American Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. and other related
entities (collectively, “APS”). The acquisition, accounted for
as a purchase business combination, included cash
consideration and transaction costs which aggregated
approximately $114 million (including an adjustment based
on the closing balance sheet review). Up to an additional
$18.0 million in total deferred payments may become payable
in annual increments of up to $6.0 million each, contingent
upon future performance, as evaluated in the first quarter of
each of the next three years. The Company has completed its
purchase price allocation, including the identification of
goodwill and other intangible assets based on an appraisal
performed by an independent valuation firm.

At the time of the acquisition, APS provided professional
pharmacy and related consulting services to approximately
60,000 residents of skilled nursing and assisted living
facilities through its network of 32 pharmacies in 15 states,
as well as respiratory and Medicare Part B services for
residents of long-term care facilities. With the acquisition,
Omnicare has achieved certain economies of scale and cost
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synergies, as well as expanded its geographic reach. The net
assets and operating results of APS have been included in the
Company’s financial statements beginning in the first quarter
of 2002,

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values
of the net assets acquired at the date of the acquisition
(in thousands):

Current assets $ 40,934
Property and equipment 8,358
Intangible assets 4,400
Goodwill 60,072
Total net assets acquired $113,764

In connection with the purchase of APS, the Company
acquired amortizable intangible assets comprised of non-
compete agreements and customer relationship assets
totaling $1.3 million and $3.1 million, respectively.
Amortization periods for the non-compete agreements and
customer relationship assets are 10.0 years and 4.7 years,
respectively, and 6.3 years on a weighted-average basis. The
Company has also recorded goodwill totaling approximately
$60 million (all of which is tax deductible) in connection with
the acquisition, although this amount is subject to adjustment
based primarily on the potential payment of any deferred
consideration discussed above. Further discussion of
goodwill and other intangible assets is included in Note 5.

Unaudited pro forma combined results of operations of
the Company and APS for the year ended December 31, 2001
are presented below. Such pro forma presentation has been
prepared assuming that the APS acquisition had been made
as of January 1, 2001. Pro forma information is not
presented for the year ended December 31, 2002 as the
results of APS are included in those of the Company from the
closing date of January 7, 2002, and the difference from the
beginning of the period is not significant.

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information
follows (in thousands, except per share data):

For the year ended
December 31, 2001

Net sales $2,451,214
Net income $ 73,461
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.7
Diluted $ 0.78

Warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2002, issued
in prior years in connection with acquisitions, represent the
right to purchase 1.8 million shares of Omnicare common
stock. These warrants can be exercised at any time through
2006 at prices ranging from $29.70 to $48.00 per share.
There were no warrants to purchase shares of common stock
exercised in 2002.
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The purchase agreements for acquisitions generally
include clauses whereby the seller will or may be paid
additional consideration at a future date depending on the
passage of time and/or whether certain future events occur.
The agreements also include provisions containing a number
of representations and covenants by the seller and provide
that if those representations or covenants are violated or
found not to have been true, Omnicare may offset any
payments required to be made at a future date against any
claims it may have under indemnity provisions in the
agreement. There are no significant anticipated future offsets
against acquisition-related payables and/or contingencies
under indemnity provisions as of December 31, 2002 and
2001. Amounts contingently payable through 2005, primarily
payments originating from earnout provisions (including up
to an additional $18.0 million relating to APS), total
approximately $27.2 million as of December 31, 2002 and, if
paid, will be recorded as additional purchase price, serving to
increase goodwill in the period in which the contingencies are
resolved and payment is made. The amount of cash paid for
acquisitions of businesses in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows represents acquisition related payments made in
each of the years of acquisition, as well as acquisition related
payments made during each of the years pursuant to
acquisition transactions entered into in prior years.

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalemts

A summary of cash and cash equivalents follows
(in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001
Cash (including restricted cash) $ 58,751 $ 48,226
Money market funds 20,334 9,206
U.S. government-backed repurchase
agreements 61,998 113,886
$141,083 $171,318

Repurchase agreements represent investments in U.S.
government-backed securities (government agency issues
and treasury issues at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively), under agreements to resell the securities
to the counterparty. The term of the agreement usually
spans overnight, but in no case is longer than 30 days. The
Company has a collateralized interest in the underlying
securities of repurchase agreements, which are segregated
in the accounts of the bank ccunterparty.
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Note 4 - Properties and Equipment

A summary of properties and equipment follows
(in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001
Land $ 1,353 % 1,553
Buildings and building improvements 5,256 5,044
Computer equipment and software 172,605 154,532
Machinery and equipment 79,804 89,855
Furniture, fixtures and
leasehold improvements 58,5360 64,253
317,778 315,237

Accumulated depreciation (177,870) (160,164)

$ 139,908 $ 155,073

Note 5 - Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS 142, the Company discontinued
the amortization of goodwill effective January 1, 2002. A
reconciliation of the previously reported net income and
earnings per share to the amounts adjusted for the exclusion
of goodwill amortization, net of tax, follows (in thousands,
except per share data):

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported  $125,906 $74,271 $48,817
Goodwill amortization, '

net of tax — 20,583 20,582
Adjusted net income $125.906  $94.854  $69,399
Basic earnings per share:
Net income, asreported $ 1.34 $ 080 $ 0.3
Goodwill amortization,

net of tax — 0.22 0.22
Adjusted net income $ 134 % 102 $ 075
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income, as reported  § 1.33 $ 079 $ 053
Goodwill amortization,

net of tax —_ 0.22 0.22
Adjusted net income $ 133 $ 101 $ 075
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company determined that there was no indication
that goodwill was impaired at the date of adoption of SFAS
142. Buring the third quarter of 2002, the Company
completed its annual goodwill impairment assessment
based on an evaluation of estimated future cash flows and
determined that goodwill was not impaired.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year
ended December 31, 2002, by business segment, are as
follows (in thousands):

Pharmacy CRO
Services  Services Total

Balance as of

January 1, 2002 $1.085,938 $37,862 $1,123,800
Goodwill acquired

in the year ended

December 31, 2002 61,272 — 61,272
Other 2,729 1,106 3,830
Balance as of

December 31, 2002 $1,149,939 $1,188,907

$38,968

The “Other” caption above includes the settlement of
acquisition matters relating to pre-2002 acquisitions
(including payments pursuant to acquisition agreements
such as deferred payments, indemnification payments and
payments originating from earnout provisions), as well as the
effect of adjustments due to foreign currency translations.

The table below presents the Company's other intangible
assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, all of which are
subject to amortization (in thousands):

December 31, 2002

Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount  Amortization  Amount
Non-compete agreements  $10,108  $(6,500)  $3,606
Customer relationship assets 3,100 (6G0) 2,440
Other 373 (230) 143
Total $13,5379 $(7,390) $6,189

December 31, 2001

Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount  Amortization  Amount
Non-compete agreements $8,963 $(5.754) $3,209
Other 190 (149) 41
Total $9.153 $(5,903) $3,250

Pretax amortization expense related to intangible assets
was $1.5 million, $1.2 million and $0.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Estimated annual amortization expense for intangible
assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2002 for
the next five fiscal years is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, Amortization Expense
2003 $1,329
2004 1,160
2005 1,095
2006 750
2007 309

Note 6 - Leasing Arrangements

The Company has operating leases that cover various
operating and administrative facilities, and certain operating
equipment. In most cases, the Company expects that these
leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases in the
normal course of business. There are no significant
contingent rentals in the Company’s operating leases.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rental
payments required under operating leases that have initial
or remaining noncancellable terms in excess of one year as
of December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

2003 $ 20,544
2004 18,267
2005 15,915
2006 14,366
2007 22,806
Later years 23,024
Total minimum payments required $114,922

Total rent expense under operating leases for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$31.8 million, $27.1 million and $27.9 miilion, respectively.
Note 7 - Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2001
Revolving line of credit facilities $ — $ 30,000
Convertible subordinated debentures 343,000 345,000
Senior subordinated notes 373,000 375,000
Capitalized lease obligations 207 1,062
720,207 751,062
Less current portion (110) (393)

$720,187 $750,669
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The following is a schedule of required long-term debt
payments due during each of the next five years and
thereafter, as of December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

2003 $ 110
20042 180
2005 7
2006 —
2007 345,000
Later years 375,000

$720,297

(a) In January 2003, the Company borrowed $459.0 million
under the Revolving Credit Facility to finance its acquisition
of NCS HealthCare, Inc. (“NCS") (see Note 19).

Total interest payments made for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $51.8 million,
$44.1 million and $54.0 million, respectively. As of December
31, 2002, the Company had approximately $7.5 million
outstanding relating to standby letters of credit, substantially
all of which are subject to automatic annual renewals.

Revolving Credit Facilities

In March 2001, the Company entered into a new three-
year syndicated $495.0 million revolving line of credit facility
(the “Revolving Credit Facility”), including a $25.0 million
letter of credit subfacility, with various lenders. Subsequent
to the closing of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Company
received commitments from additional financial institutions
that allowed the Company to increase the size of the
Revolving Credit Facility to $500.0 million.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear
interest, at the Company’s option, at a rate equal to either:
(i) London Inter-bank Offerer Rate (“LIBOKR”) plus a margin
that varies depending on certain ratings on the Company's
long-term debt; or (ii) the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b)
the sum of the federal funds rate plus 0.50%. The margin was
1.375% at December 31, 2002. Additionally, the Company
is charged a commitment fee on the unused portion of the
Revolving Credit Facility, which also varies depending on
such ratings. At December 31, 2002, the commitment fee
was 0.375%. The Revolving Credit Facility agreement
contains financial covenants, which include a fixed charge
coverage ratio and minimum consolidated net worth levels
as well as certain representations and warranties, affirmative
and negative covenants, and events of default customary
for such a facility. The Company was in compliance with
these covenants as of December 31, 2002. The three-year
Revolving Credit Facility had no outstanding loans as
of December 31, 2002, compared with $30.0 million
outstanding at December 31, 2001. In January 2003, the
Company borrowed $499.0 million under the Revolving Credit
Facility to finance its acquisition of NCS (see Note 19).
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Upon the issuance of the Revolving Credit Facility, the
Company had deferred debt issuance costs of $6.3 million.
During 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, the Company
amortized approximately $2.0 million, $1.9 million and
$1.2 million of deferred debt issuance costs related to its
revolving credit facilities.

Converlible Subordinated Debentures

In December 1997, the Company issued $345.0 million
of 5.0% convertible subordinated debentures (“Debentures”),
due 2007. The Debentures are convertible into common stock
at any time after March 4, 1998 at the option of the holder
at a price of $39.60 per share. At any time on or after
December 6, 2000, the Debentures are redeemable at the
Company’s option on at least 30 days’ notice as a whole or,
from time to time, in part at prices (expressed as a
percentage of the principal amount) ranging from 102.5%
at December 1, 2002, scaling downward ratably at 0.5%
intervals to 100.0% at December 1, 2007 together with
accrued interest to, but excluding, the date fixed for
redemption. In connection with the issuance of the
Debentures, the Company deferred $8.5 million in debt
issuance costs, of which approximately $0.9 million was
amortized in each of the three years ended December 31,
2002. The Debentures contain certain covenarits and events
of default customary for such instruments.

Senior Suberdinated Notes

Concurrent with the issuance of the Revolving Credit
Facility, the Company completed the issuance, at par value,
of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior subordinated notes (the
“Senior Notes”), due 2011. In connection with the issuance
of the Senior Notes, the Company deferred $11.1 million in
debt issuance costs, of which approximately $1.1 million
and $0.8 million, were amortized during 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The Senior Notes contain certain affirmative and
negative covenants and events of default customary for such
instruments. The Senior Notes were subsequently exchanged
for replacement notes with identical terms, which were
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Note 8 - Stock Incentive Plans

At December 31, 2002, the Company has three stock
incentive plans under which it may grant stock-based
incentives to key employees. Under these plans, stock options
generally become exercisable beginning one year following
the date of grant and vest in four equal annual installments
of 25%, or become exercisable beginning four years following
the date of grant and vest in one installment of 100%.

Under the 1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, the
Company may grant stock awards, stock appreciation rights
and stock options at not tess than the fair market value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. As of
December 31, 2002, approximately 0.2 million shares were
available for grant under this plan.
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During 1995, the Company’s Board of Directors and
stockholders approved the 1995 Premium-Priced Stock
Option Plan, providing options to purchase 2.5 million shares
of Company common stock available for grant at an exercise
price of 125% of the stock’s fair market value at the date of
grant. As of December 31, 2002, an insignificant amount of
shares were available for grant under this plan.

During 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors approved
the 1998 Long-Term Employee Incentive Plan (the 1998
Plan”), under which the Company was authorized to grant
stock-based incentives 1o a broad base of employees
(excluding executive officers and directors of the Company)
in an amount initially aggregating up to 1.0 million shares
of Company common stock for non-qualified options, stock
awards and stock appreciation rights. In March 2000 and
November 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors amended
the 1998 Plan to increase the shares available for granting to
3.5 million and 6.3 million, respectively. As of December 31,
2002, approximately 3.3 million shares were available for
grant under this plan.

The Company also has a Director Stock Plan, which
allows for stock options and stock awards to be granted to
certain non-employee directors. As of December 31, 2002,
approximately 0.1 million shares were available for grant
under this plan.

Summary information for stock options is presented
below (in thousands, except exercise price data):

2002

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding,
beginning of year 7,913 $19.31
Options granted 2,074 26.38
Options exercised (230) 15.30
Options forfeited (249) 25.47
Options outstanding, end of year 9,308 $20.78
Options exercisable, end of year 4,318 $20.43

2001

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding,
beginning of year 7,796 $18.06
Options granted 1,760 19.98
Options exercised (1,429) 11.79
Options forfeited (214) 22.35
Options outstanding, end of year 7,913 $19.31
Options exercisable, end of year 3,082 $21.80
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2000

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding,
beginning of year 6,692 $18.42
Options granted 1,675 16.34
Options exercised (172) 6.30
Options forfeited (399) 21.41
Options outstanding, end of year 7,796 $18.06
Options exercisable, end of year 3,035 $19.48

The following summarizes information about stock
options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2002
(in thousands, except exercise price and remaining life data):

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

Weighted Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average
Range of Outstanding Contractual - Exercise
Exercise Prices at 12/31/02 Life (in years) Price
$ 4.11-$1234 1,087 4.9 $11.62
12.35- 15.42 2,060 6.5 15.42
15.43 - 18.32 1,254 74 16.57
18.33 - 24.86 1,972 8.8 20.16
24.87- 55.08 3,145 74 28.52
$ 4.11-$55.08 9,508 7.2 $20.78
OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
Number Weighted
Range of Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices at 12/31/02 Exercise Price
$4.11-%1234 793 $11.53
12.35- 15.42 1,432 15.42
1543 - 18.32 533 16.57
18.33 - 24.86 437 20.07
24.87- 55.08 1,323 32.94
$ 4.11 - $55.08 4,518 $20.45

Nonvested stock awards that are granted to key
employees at the discretion of the Compensation and
Incentive Committee of the Board of Directors are restricted
as to the transfer of ownership and generally vest over a
seven-year period, with a greater proportion vesting in the
latter years. Unrestricted stock awards are granted annually
to all members of the Board of Directors, and non-employee
directors also receive nonvested stock awards that generally
vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant. The fair
value of a stock award is equal to the fair market value of a
share of Company stock at the grant date.
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Summary information relating to stock award grants is
presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Nonvested shares 538,329 512,364 947,438
Unrestricted shares 4,800 4,800 5,200
Weighted average grant
date fair value § 2132 $ 2035 $ 985

When granted, the cost of nonvested stock awards is
deferred and amortized over the vesting period. Unrestricted
stock awards are expensed during the year granted. During
2002, 2001 and 2000, the amount of compensation expense
related to stock awards was $5.9 million, $3.8 million and
$3.9 million, respectively.

Note 9 - Related Party Transactions

The Company subleased offices from Chemed Corporation
(“Chemed”), a stockholder, in part of 2002 and all of 2001
and 2000. The Company was charged for consulting services
pertaining to information systems development in part of
2001 and all of 2000. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, the Company
was also charged for the occasional use of Chemed’s corporate
aviation department, rent and other incidental expenses
based on Chemed's cost. The Company believes that the method
by which such charges were determined was reasonable and
that the charges are essentially equal to that which would
have been incurred if the Company had operated as an
unaffiliated entity. Charges to the Company for these services
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$0.3 million, $1.0 million and $1.4 million, respectively. Net
amounts owed by the Company to Chemed were not
significant at either December 31, 2002 or 2001.

Note 10 - Employee Benefil Plans

The Company has various defined contribution savings
plans under which eligible employees can participate by
contributing a portion of their salary for investment, at the
direction of each employee, in one or more investment funds.
Several of the plans were adopted in connection with certain
of the Company’s acquisitions. The plans are tax-deferred
arrangements pursuant to Internal Revenue Code (“IRC")
Section 401(k) and are subject to the provisions of the
Employee Retirement income Security Act ("ERISA”). The
Company matches employee contributions in varying degrees
(either in shares of the Company’s common stock or cash,
in accordance with the applicable plan provisions) based
on the contribution levels of the employees, as specified in
the respective plan documents. Expense relating to the
Company's defined contribution plans for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $3.8 million,
$3.9 million and $4.9 million, respectively.
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The Company has a non-contributory, defined benefit
pension plan covering certain corporate headquarters
employees and the employees of several companies sold by
the Company in 1992, for which benefits ceased accruing
upon the sale (the “Qualified Plan”). Benefits accruing under
this plan to corporate headquarters employees were fully
vested and frozen as of January 1, 1994. Obligations under
the plan of $2.4 million were fully funded at December 31,
2002,

The Company also has an excess benefit plan which
provides retirement payments to participants in amounts
consistent with what they would have received under the
Qualified Plan if payments to them under the Qualified Plan
were not limited by the IRC and other restrictions. Retirement
benefits are based primarily on an employee’s years of
service and compensation near retirement and are calculated
on a basis consistent with the Qualified Plan. The Company
has established rabbi trusts, which are invested primarily
in a mutual fund holding U.S. Treasury obligations, to
provide for the obligation under the excess benefit plan.

The Company's policy is to fund pension costs in accordance
with the funding provisions of ERISA. Expense relating to

the Company’s excess benefit plan totaled $4.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, and $4.0 million for each
of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Actuarial assumptions used to calculate the benefit
obligations and expenses include a 6.75% interest rate as
of December 31, 2002 (7.25% at December 31, 2001 and
7.75% at December 31, 2000, respectively), an expected
long-term rate of return on assets of 8% and a 6% rate of
increase in compensation levels.

The aggregate assets invested for settlement of the
Company’s pension obligations, including rabbi trust assets,
(“plan assets”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are
greater than the aggregate Accumulated Benefit Obligation
(“ABQ”) by $3.2 million and $3.1 million, respectively. Since
rabbi trust assets do not serve to offset the Company’s
pension obligation in accordance with U.S. GAAP, an
additional minimum pension liability has been recorded, as a
component of other comprehensive income, for the difference
between the ABO and the recorded liability for the excess
benefit plan. The plan assets as of December 31, 2002 and
2001 are (less)/greater than the aggregate Projected Benefit
Obligation (“PBO”) by $(2.3) million and $0.2 million,
respectively {collectively referred to as “net PBO”). The
decrease in the net PBO from the prior vear of $2.5 million
primarily relates to an increase in plan assets of $4.9 million,
more than offset by an actuarial loss of $4.0 million, interest
expense (including the change in the discount rate) of
$2.8 million and service costs of $0.6 million. Plan assets
amounted to $25.1 million and $20.2 million at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

In addition, the Company also has supplemental pension
plans (“SPPs”) in which certain of its officers participate.
Retirement benefits under the SPPs are calculated on the
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basis of a specified percentage of the officers’ covered
compensation, years of credited service and a vesting
schedule, as specified in the plan documents. One of the
SPPs terminated in 2000, resulting in benefit payments of
$2.4 million.

In November 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors

The difference between the Company’s reported income
tax expense and the federal income tax expense computed at
the statutory rate of 35% is explained in the following table
(in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
adopted the Omnicare StockPlus Program, a non-
compensatory employee stock purchase plan (the “ESPP”). Federal income
Under the ESPP, employees and non-employee directors of tax at the
the Company who elect to participate may contribute up to statutory
6% of eligible compensation (or an amount not to exceed rate $71,068 35.0% $41,925 35.0% $27,133 35.0%
$20,000 for non-employee directors) to purchase shares of State and local
the Company’s common stock. For each share of stock income taxes,
purchased, the participant also receives two options to net of federal
purchase additional shares of the Company’s stock. The income tax
options are subject to a four-year vesting period and are benefit 4,999 2.5 1,712 14 1,123 1.5
generally subject to forfeiture in the event the related shares Amortization of
are not held by the participant for a minimum of two years. nondeductible
The options have a ten-year life from the date of issuance. intangible
Amounts contributed to the ESPP are used by the plan assets - — 3477 2.7 3,037 39
administrator to purchase the Companys stock on the open Nondeductible
market. Options awarded under the ESPP are issued out of pooling-of-
the 1992 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan and the 1998 Long- interest/merger
Term Employee Incentive Plan, and are included in the option and acquisition
activity presented in Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial coslts _ - (401) (0.3) (622) (0.8)
Statements. Impact of net
operating
Note 11 - Income Taxes loss - - - - (373) (0.5)
The provision for income taxes is comprised of the Other, net
following (in thousands): (including
tax accrual
For the years ended December 31, adjustments) 1,078 0.3 (899) (0.8)  (1,592) (2.1)
2002 2001 2000
— Total income tax
Current provision: - provision  $77,145 38.0% $45,514 38.0% $28,706 37.0%
Federal $35.808  $26,440 $ 8,304
State and focal 5,145 1,709 575 Income tax payments (refunds), net, amounted to
Foreign 674 60 60  $64.2 million, $16.0 million and $(6.8) million in 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.
61,717 28.209 8.939 A summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities follows
Deferred provision: (in thousands):
Federal 12,881 16,314 17,967 December 31,
State 2,547 991 1,800 2002 2001
15,428 17,305 19,767  Accounts receivable reserves $ 16,691 §$ 12,517
. - = Accrued liabilities 34,821 33,738
Total income tax provision $77,145  $45,514  $28,706 Other 11.879 7012
Tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options Gross deferred tax assets $ 63,301 $ 53,267
and stock awards have been credited to paid-in capital in
amounts of $0.6 million and $5.3 million for 2002 and 2001,  Fixed assets and depreciation methods $ 7,963 $ 10,121
respectively. These amounts were not significant during 2000.  Amortization of intangibles 111,384 87829
Current and noncurrent assets 7,041 6,892
Other 2,453 1,773
Gross deferred tax liabilities $128,841 $106,615

OMNICARE, INC.
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Note 12 - BEarnings Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share are computed based on the
weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the pericd. Diluted earnings per share
include the dilutive effect of stock options and warrants.

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and
denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share
(“EPS”) computations (in thousands, except per share data):

For the year ended December 31, 2002
Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amounts

Basic EPS
Net income $123,906 94,168 $1.34
Effect of Dilutive
Securities
Stock options and
stock warrants — 737
Diluted EPS
Net income plus
assumed
conversions $125,008 04,905 $1.33
For the year ended December 31, 2001
Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amounts
Bastc EPS
Net income $74,271 93,124 $0.80
Effect of Dilutive
Securities
Stock options and
stock warrants — 634
Diluted EPS
Net income plus
assumed
conversions 874,271 93,758 $0.79
For the vear ended December 31, 2000
Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) {Denominator) Amounts
Basic EPS
Net income $48,817 92,012 $0.53
Effecl of Dilutive
Securities
Stock options and
stock warrants — —
Diluted EPS
Net income plus
assumed
conversions $48,817 92,012 $0.53
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During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, the anti-dilutive effect associated with selected options
and warrants was excluded from the computation of diluted
earnings per share, since the exercise price of these options
and warrants was greater than the average market price
of the Companys common stock during these periods.

The aggregate anti-dilutive stock options and warrants
excluded for those years totaled 4.5 million, 3.8 million,
and 7.6 million, respectively.

The $345.0 million of Convertible Debentures which are
convertible into approximately 8.7 million shares at $39.60
per share were outstanding during 2002, 2001 and 2000, but
were not inchuded in the computation of diluted EPS for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 because the
impact during these periods was anti-dilutive.

Note 13 - Restructuring and
Other Related Charges

Phase [ Program

In 2000, the Company completed its previously
disclosed productivity and consolidation program (the “Phase
I Program”). The Phase I Program was implemented to allow
the Company to gain maximum benefit from its acquisition
program and to respond to changes in the healthcare
industry. As part of the Phase I Program, the roster of
pharmacies and other operating locations was reconfigured
through the consolidation, relocation, closure and opening of
sites, resulting in a net reduction of 59 locations. The Phase |
Program also resulted in the reduction of the Company’s work
force by 16%, or approximately 1,800 full- and part-time
employees.

Details of the restructuring and other related charges
relating to the Phase 1 productivity and consolidation program
follow (in thousands):

Utilized Balance at
2000 during December 31,
Provision 2000 2000
Restructuring charges:
Employee severance  $ 3,296 $ (8,367) $3.390
Employment
agreement buy-outs 1,048 {3,735) 676
Lease terminations 1,881 (3.811) 2,593
Other assets and
facility exit costs 10,627 (9,737) 2,538
Total restructuring
charges 16,852 $(25.,650) $9,197
Other related
charges 10,347
Total restructuring
and other
related
charges $27,199
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Utilized Balance at
during December 31,
2001 2001
Restructuring charges:
Emplovee severance $(2,997) $ 393
Employment
agreement buy-outs (676) —
Lease terminations (1,775) 818
Other assets and
facility exit costs (2,299) 239
Total restructuring
charges $(7,747) $1,450
Utilized Balance at
during December 31,
2002 2002
Restructuring charges:
Employee severance $ (393) $ —
Employment
agreement buy-outs — —
Lease terminations (246) 572
Other assets and
facility exit costs (239) —

Total restructuring

charges $ (878) $ 572

In connection with this program, over the 1999 and 2000
periods, Omnicare recorded a total of $62.6 million pretax
($39.8 million after taxes) for restructuring and other related
charges, of which $27.2 million pretax ($17.1 million after
taxes, or $0.19 per diluted share) related to the 2000 year.
The restructuring charges included severance pay, the buy-
out of employment agreements, the buy-out of lease
obligations, the write-off of other assets (representing a
project-to-date cumulative amount of $11.0 million of pretax
non-cash items, through December 31, 2000) and facility exit
costs. The other related charges were primarily comprised of
consulting fees and duplicate costs associated with the
program, as well as the write-off of certain non-core
healthcare investments.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had paid
approximately $23.3 million of severance and other
employee-related costs relating to the reduction of
approximately 1,800 employees. The remaining liabilities at
December 31, 2002 represent amounts not yet paid relating
to actions taken (comprised of remaining lease payments),
and will be adjusted as these matters are settled.

Phase 1l Program
In 2001, the Company announced the implementation of
a second phase of the productivity and consolidation initiative
(the “Phase Il Program”). The Phase II Program, completed
on September 30, 2002, further streamlined operations,
increased efficiencies and helped enhance the Company’s

OMNICARE, INC.

position as a high quality, cost-effective provider of
pharmaceutical services. Building on the previous efforts, the
Phase II Program included the merging or closing of seven
pharmacy locations and the reconfiguration in size and
function of an additional ten locations. The Phase I Program
also included a reduction in occupied building space in
certain locations and the rationalization or reduction of
staffing levels in the CRO business in order to better garner
the efficiencies of the integration and functional reorganization
of that business. The Phase II Program encompassed a net
reduction of approximately 460 employees, or about 5% of
the Company’s total workforce, across both the Pharmacy
Services and CRO Services segments.

In connection with the Phase II Program, the Company
expensed a total of $18.3 million pretax ($11.4 million
aftertax, or $0.12 per diluted share) for restructuring
charges during the year ended December 31, 2001. Further,
approximately $23.2 million pretax ($14.4 million aftertax, or
$0.15 per diluted share) was recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2002, when the amounts were required to be
recognized in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The restructuring
charges included severance pay, the buy-out of employment
agreements, the buy-out of lease obligations, the write-off of
leasehold improvements and other assets, and related fees
and facility exit costs.

Details of the pretax restructuring charges relating to the
Phase 1l Program follow (in thousands):

2001 Utilized Balance at
Provision/ during December 31,
Accrual 2001 2001
Restructuring charges:
Employee
severance $ 4,256 $ (2,614) $1,642
Employment
agreement buy-outs 2,086 (1,578) 508
Lease terminations 2,711 (2,105) 606
Other assets, fees and
facility exit costs 9,291 (6,264) 3,027
Total restructuring
charges $18,344 $(12,561) $5,783
2002 Utilized Balance at
Provision/ during December 31,
Accrual 2002 2002
Restructuring charges:
Employee
severance $ 2177 $ (2,655) $1,164
Employment
agreement buy-outs — (214) 294
Lease terminations 5,862 (1,840) 4,622
Other assels, fees and
facility exit costs 15,156 (14,690) 3,493
Total restructuring
charges $23,195 $(19,405) $9,573
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As of December 31, 2002, the Company had paid
approximately $7.1 million of severance and other employee-
related costs relating to the reduction of approximately 460
employees. The remaining liabilities recorded at December
31, 2002 represent amounts not yet paid or setiled relating to
actions taken, and will be adjusted in future periods as these
matters are finalized.

Note 14 - Other Expense

Included in the 2001 results are other expense items
totaling $1.8 million pretax ($1.1 million aftertax, or $0.01
per diluted share) and $3.0 million pretax ($1.9 million
aftertax, or $0.02 per diluted share). The $1.8 million special
charge recorded in the first quarter of 2001 represents a
repayment to the Medicare program of overpayments made
to one of the Company’s pharmacy units during the period
from January 1997 through April 1998. As part of its
corporate compliance program, the Company learned of the
overpayments, which related to Medicare Part B claims that
contained documentation errors, and notified the Health Care
Financing Administration (now known as the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services) for review and determination
of the amount of overpayment. The $3.0 million special
charge recorded in the second quarter of 2001 represents a
settlement during June 2001 of certain contractual issues
with a customer, which issues and amount relate to prior
vear periods.

Note 15 - Shareholders’ Rights Plan

In May 1999, the Companys Board of Directors declared
a dividend, payable on June 2, 1999, of one preferred share
purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of the
Company’s $1.00 per share par value common stock, that,
when exercisable, entitles the registered holder to purchase
from the Company one ten-thousandth of a share of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company, without
par value (the “Preferred Shares”), at a price of $135 per one
ten-thousandth of a share, subject to adjustment. Upon
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certain events relating to the acquisition of, commencement
or announcement of, or announcement of an intention to
make a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in the
beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company’s
outstanding common stock by an individual or group of
individuals (the “Distribution Date”), the Rights not owned
by the 15% stockholder will entitle its holder to purchase,

at the Right's then current exercise price, common shares
having a market value of twice such exercise price.
Additionally, if after any person has become a 15%
stockholder, the Company is involved in a merger or other
business combination with any other person, each Right will
entitle its holder (other than the 15% stockholder) to
purchase, at the Right's then current exercise price, common
shares of the acquiring company having a value of twice the
Right's then current exercise price. The Rights will expire on
May 17, 2009, uniess redeemed earlier by the Company at
$0.01 per Right until the Distribution Date.

Note 16 - Segment Information

Based on the “management approach” as defined by
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information,” Omnicare has two operating
business segmenis. The Company’s largest segment is
Pharmacy Services. Pharmacy Services provides distribution
of pharmaceuticals, related pharmacy consulting, data
management services and medical supplies to long-term care
facilities in 45 states in the United States of America (“USA”)
at December 31, 2002. The Company's other reportable
segment is CRO Services, which provides comprehensive
product development services to client companies in
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, medical devices and
diagnostics industries in 28 countries around the world at
December 31, 2002, including the USA.

The table below presents information about the
reportable segments as of and for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and should be read in connection
with the paragraphs that follow (in thousands):
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Corporate

Pharmacy CRO and Consolidated
2002: Services Services Consolidating Totals
Net sales $2,467,237 $165,517 $ — $2,632,754
Depreciation and amortization 40,389 2,237 2,637 45,263
Restructuring charges (6,769) (16,426) — (23,195)
Operating income (expense) 288,196 4,610 (36,220) 256,586
Total assets 2,126,718 120,155 180,712 2,427,585
Capital expenditures 22,900 7706 072 24,648
2001:
Net sales $ 2,033,752 $ 148,284 $ — $ 2,183,036
Depreciation and amortization 68,390 3,881 1,799 74,070
Restructuring charges (8,504) (9.840) — (18,344)
Other (expense) (4,817) — — (4,817)
Operating income (expense) 200,780 2,540 (29,826) 173,494
Total assets 1,953,243 133,371 203,662 2,290,276
Capitat expenditures 23,671 1,504 1,147 26,222
2000:
Net sales $ 1,858,697 $ 129,142 $ — $ 1,987,839
Depreciation and amortization 69,346 3,458 1,169 13,973
Restructuring and other related charges (21,615) (5,584) — (27,189)
Operating income (expense) 156,589 1,664 (27,566) 130,687
Total assets 1,960,870 117,212 132,136 2,210,218
Capital expenditures 26,866 3,119 2,438 32,423

In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, the Company included in its reported CRO segment net sales amounts, reimbursable
out-of-pockets totaling $26.3 million, $23.9 million and $16.5 million pretax for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001

and 2000, respectively.

Additionally, in accordance with Omnicare’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company discontinued amortization of goodwill
as of January 1, 2002. Accordingly, no goodwill amortization was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002. Pretax
goodwill amortization for years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 totaled $32.1 million and $31.6 million, respectively, for
the Pharmacy Services segment, and $1.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively, for the CRO Services segment.

The following summarizes sales and long-lived assets by geographic area as of and for the years ended December 31,

2002, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands):

Net, Sales Long-Lived Assets
2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
United States $2,596,603 $2,147,5637 $1,951,660 $138,516 $153,562 $156,610
Foreign 35,499 36,179 1,392 1,511 1,925
Total $2,632,754 $2,183,036 $1,987,839 $139,208 $155,073 $158,535

The determination of foreign sales is based on the country in which the sales originate. No individual foreign country’s
sales were material to the consolidated sales of Omnicare. In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, Omnicare included in its net
sales, during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, reimbursable out-of-pockets totaling $18.6 million,
$17.2 million and $10.4 million, respectively, for the United States geographic area, $7.7 million, $6.7 million and $6.1 million,
respectively, for the foreign geographic area and $26.3 million, $23.9 million and $16.5 million, respectively, for the total net

sales.

OMNICARE, INC.
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Note 17 - Summary of Quarierly Results (Unaudited)

The following table presents the Company's quarterly financial information for 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except per

share data):

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter " Year
2002
Total net sales® $638,314 $654,153 $664,718 $673,567 $2,8632,754
Total direct cosis® 474,110 483,225 489,151 495,215 1,941,701
Gross profit 164,204 170,930 175,567 180,352 691,053
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 09,618 102,501 103,888 103,265 411,272
Restructuring charges (Note 13) 4,797 7,302 11,096 — 23,193
Operating income 59,789 61,127 50,583 75,087 236,586
Investment income 708 667 651 1,160 3,276
Interest expense (14,176) (14,473) (14,339) (13,821) G6,811)
Income before income taxes 46,411 47,319 43,893 62,426 203,051
Income taxes 17,635 17,961 17,829 23,720 77,145
Net income $ 28,776 $ 29,338 $ 29,066 $ 38,706 $ 125,906
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.31 $  0.31 $ 0.31 $ 0.4 $ 1.34
Diluted®™ $  0.30 $  0.31 $ 0.3t $ 0.41 $ 1.33
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding:
Basic 03,963 04,175 04,245 04,286 04,168
Diluted®™ 94,598 95,292 94,710 07,684 94,905
2001
Total net sales™® $ 529,408 $ 536,492 $ 547,843 $ 569,293 $ 2,183,036
Total direct costs® 389,144 394,429 402,312 417,752 1,603,637
Gross profit 140,264 142,063 145,531 151,541 579,399
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 87,754 85,755 86,359 89,677 349,545
Goodwill amortization {Note 5) 8,162 8,335 8,393 8,309 33,199
Restructuring charges (Note 13) — — 15,409 2,935 18,344
Other expense (Note 14) 1,817 3,000 — — 4,817
Operating income 42,531 44,973 35,370 50,620 173,494
Investment income 474 748 701 692 2,615
Interest expense (13,909) (14,415) (14,201) (13,799) (56,324)
Income before income taxes 29,096 31,306 21,870 37,6013 119,785
Income taxes 11,052 11,910 8,310 14,242 45,514
Net income $ 18,044 $ 19,396 $ 13,560 $ 23271 $ 74,271
Earnings per share:®
Basic $ 0.20 $ 0.21 $ 0.15 $ 0.25 $ 0.80
Diluted $ 0.19 $ 0.21 $ 0.14 $ 0.25 $ 0.79
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding:
Basic 92,422 93,198 93,345 93,615 93,124
Diluted 93,170 94,042 94,117 94,049 93,758
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Note 17 - Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited)-Continued

(a) In accordance with the adoption of EITF No. 01-14, Omnicare has recorded reimbursements received for "out-of-pocket" expenses on a grossed-up basis in
total net sales and total direct costs for both the 2002 and 2001 periods. EITF No. 01-14 relates solely to the Company's CRO Services business.

(b} The fourth quarter of 2002 includes the dilutive effect of the $345.0 million Convertible Debentures, which assumes conversion using the "if converted"
method. Under that method, the Convertible Debentures are assumed to be converted to common shares (weighted for the number of days assumed to be
outstanding during the period) and interest expense, net of taxes, related to the Convertible Debentures is added back to net income.

(c) Earnings per share is calculated independently for each separately reported quarterly and full year period. Accordingly, the sum of the separately reported
quarters may not necessarily be equal to the per share amount for the corresponding full year period, as independently calculated.

Note 18 - Guarantor Subsidiaries

The Company’s Senior Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured, joint and several basis by certain
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The following condensed consolidating financial
data illustrates the composition of Omnicare, Inc. (“Parent”), the Guarantor Subsidiaries and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 for the balance sheets, as well as the statements of income and cash flows for each of the
three years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Separate complete financial statements of the respective Guarantor
Subsidiaries would not provide additional information which would be useful in assessing the financial condition of the
Guarantor Subsidiaries and thus are not presented. No eliminations column is presented for the condensed consolidating
statements of cash flows since there were no significant eliminating amounts during the periods presented.

Summary Conselidating Statements of Income

(in thousands) Year ended December 31,

Omnicare, Inc.

Guarantor Non-Guarantor and

2002: Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations Subsidiaries
Total net sales $ —  $2,521,682 $111,072  § - $2,632,754
Cost of sales — 1,850,455 01,246 — 1,941,701
Gross profit — 671,227 19,826 — 691,033
Selling, general and administrative expenses 29,585 360,245 21,442 — 411,272
Restructuring charges —_ 22,397 798 — 23,195
Operating income (loss) (29,585) 288,585 (2,414) — 236,586
Investment income 1,735 1,288 233 — 3,276
Interest expense (56,082) (347) (182) — (56,811)
Income (loss) before income taxes (83,912) 289,326 (2,363) — 203,051
Income tax (benefit) expense (31,887) 109,930 (898) — 71,145
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 177,931 — — (177,931) —
Net income {loss) $125,906 $ 179,396 $ (1,463) $(177.931) $ 123,906
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Note 18 - Guarantor Subsidiaries-Continued

Summary Consolidating Statements of Income-Continued
Year ended December 31,

(in thousands)

Omnicare, Inc.

Guarantor Non-Guarantor and

2001: Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations Subsidiaries
Total net sales $ — $2,084,844 $148,489 $ (50,297) $2,183,036
Cost of sales — 1,624,989 128,945 (50,297) 1,603,637
Gross profit — 559,855 19,544 — 579,399
Selling, general and administrative expenses 17,026 343,389 22,329 — 382,744
Restructuring charges — 18,344 — — 18,344
Other expense — 4,817 — — 4,817
Operating income (108s) (17,026) 193,305 (2,785) — 173,494
Investment income 1,767 613 235 — 2,615
Interest expense (53,956) (798) (1,570) — (566,324)
Income (loss) before income taxes (69,215) 193,120 (4,120) — 119,785
Income tax (benefit) expense (26,302) 73,509 (1.693) — 45,514
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 117,184 — — (117,184) —
Net income (loss) $ 74,271 $ 119,611 $ (2,427) $(117,184) $ 74,271
2000:

Total net sales $ — $1.886,231 $161,662 $ (60,054) $1,987,839
Cost of sales — 1,383,737 138,763 (60,054) 1,462,446
Gross profit — 502,494 22,899 — 525,393
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13,383 326,415 27,709 — 367,507
Restructuring and other related charges — 25,052 2,147 — 27,199
Operating income (108s) (13,383) 151,027 (6,957) — 130,687
Investment income 1,774 (274) 410 — 1,910
Interest expense (54,126) (767) (181) — (55,074)
Income (loss) before income taxes (65,735) 149,986 (6,728) — 77,523
Income tax {(benefit) expense (24,322) 53,990 (962) — 28,706
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 90,230 — — (90,230) —
Net income (loss) $48,817 $ 65,996 $ (5,766) $ (90,230) $ 48,817
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Note 18 - Guaranter Subsidiaries-Continued
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets
December 31,

(in thousands)

Omnicare, Inc.
Guarantor Non-Guarantor and

2002: Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations Subsidiaries
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 05,693 $ 36,191 $ 6,052 $ — $ 137,936
Restricted cash _ 3,147 — —_ 3.147
Accounts receivable, net (including

intercompany) — 524,290 13,610 (15,043) 522,857
Inventories —_ 183,321 4,943 — 190,464
Other current assets 1,399 144,399 1,336 — 147,154

Total current assets 07,092 893,548 25,961 (15,043) 1,001,358
Properties and equipment, net 2,931 126,452 10,525 — 139,908
Goodwill —_ 1,121,728 67,179 — 1,188,907
Other noncurrent assets 31,234 63,029 049 — 97,212
Investment in subsidiaries 1,903,357 —_ — (1,903,3537) —

Total assets $2,034,614 $2,208,737 $104,614 $(1,918,400) $2,427,383
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) $ 37,363 $ 255,601 $ 18,632 $ (153,043) $ 296,650
Long-term debt — 187 — — 187
5.0% convertible subordinated debentures,

due 2007 345,000 — — — 343,000
8.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2011 375,000 —_ —_ — 373.000
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,189 132,577 920 —_ 135,686
Stockholders' equity 1,275,082 1,818,302 83,035 (1,903,337) 1,275,062

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $2,034,614 $2,206,757 $104,614 $(1,918,400) $2,427,585
2001:
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 127.110 $ 37,304 $ 3982 § — $ 168,396
Restricted cash —_ 2,922 — — 2,922
Accounts receivable, net (including

intercompany) — 462,882 24,648 (9,453) 478,077
Inventories — 144,833 4,301 — 149,134
Other current assets 944 126,049 2,072 — 129,065

Total current assets 128,054 773,990 35,003 (9,453) 927,594
Properties and equipment, net 3,192 139,130 12,751 — 155,073
Goodwill — 1,060,523 63,277 — 1,123,800
Other noncurrent assets 30,023 53.317 469 — 83,809
Investment in subsidiaries 1,754,149 — — (1,754,149) —

Total assets $1,915,418 $2,026,960 $111,300 $(1,763,602) $2,290.276
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities (including intercompany) $ 14,797 $ 246,338 $ 17,591 $ (9,453) $ 269,273
Long-term debt 30,000 609 60 — 30,669
5.0% convertible subordinated debentures,

due 2007 345,000 — — — 345,000
8.125% senior subordinated notes, due 2011 375,000 — —_ — 375,000
Other noncurrent liabilities 838 119,227 486 — 120,551
Stockholders' equity 1,149,783 1,660,786 93,363 (1,754,149) 1,149,783

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,915,418 $2,026,960 $111,500 $(1.763,602) $2,290,276

OMNICARE, INC.
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Note 18 - Guarantor Subsidiaries-Continued
Condensed Consolidating Siatements of Cash Flows
(in thousands) Year ended December 31,
Non- Omnicare, Inc.
Guarantor Guarantor and

2002: Parent Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
Cash flows from operating activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts — $ 30,269 S 894 $ 31,163
Other (29,513) 135,544 1,915 127,946

Net cash flows from operating activities (29,313) 183,813 2,809 159,109
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses — (126,333) (1,250) (127,783)
Capital expenditures — (24,378) (270) (24,648)
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and severance

costs, net of payments out of the trust — (2253) — (225)
Other — 272 1 273

Net cash flows from investing activities —_ (130,864) (1,519) (152,383)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 90,000 — — 90,000
Payments on line of credit facilities (120,000) — — (120,000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings — (214) — 214)
Proceeds from stock awards and exercise of stock options,

net of stock tendered in payment — 667 —_ 667
Dividends — (8,491) — (8,491)
Other 28,096 (28,024) — 72

Net cash flows from financing activities {1,904) (36,062) — (37,968)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash —_ — 780 780
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (31,417) {1,113) 2,070 {30,460)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - unrestricted 127,110 37,304 3,982 168,396
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - unrestricted $ 93,693 $ 36,191 $ 6,052 $ 137,936
2001:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Provision for doubtful accounts $ — $ 24,201 $ 1,289 $ 25,490
Other (65,203) 190,247 2,553 127,597

Net cash flows from operating activities (65,203) 214,448 3,842 153,087
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses — (20,263) — (20,263)
Capital expenditures (703) (21,546) (3,.973) (26,222)
Transfer of cash 1o trusts for employee health and severance

costs, net of payments out of the trust — (622) — (622)
Other — 135 170 305

Net cash flows from investing activities {703) (42,296) {3,803) {46,802)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit facilities 70,000 — — 70,000
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 375,000 — — 375,000
Payments on line of credit facilities (475,000) — — (475,000)
Fees paid for financing arrangements (16,254) — — (16,254)
Other 190,607 (194,122) 214 (3,301)

Net cash flows from financing activities 144,353 (194,122) 214 (49,555)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — 59 59
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 78,447 (21,970) 312 56,789
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - unrestricted 48,663 59,274 3,670 111,607
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - unrestricted $ 127,110 $ 37.304 $ 3.982 $ 168,396

38

OMNICARE, INC.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 18 - Guarantor Subsidiaries-Continued

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows-Continued

(in thousands) Year ended December 31,
Non- Cmnicare, Inc.
Guarantor Guarantor and
2000: Parent Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
Cash flows from operating activities:
Provisicn for doubtful accounts $ —_ $ 22,604 $ 4,125 $ 26,729
Other (57,558) 158,883 4,647 105,972
Net cash flows from operating activities (57,558) 181,487 8,772 132,701
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of businesses — (36,018) (5,646) (41,664)
Capital expenditures (1,859) (26,423) (4,141) (32,423)
Transfer of cash to trusts for employee health and severance
costs, net of payments out of the trust — (2,300} — (2,300)
Other — 1,044 (773) 271
Net cash flows from investing activities {1,859) (63.697) (10,560) (76,116)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on line of credit facilities (30,000) — — {30,000)
Other 86,071 {(97,790) (58) (11,777)
Net cash flows from financing activities 56,071 (97,790) (08) (41,777)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash — — (468) (468)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3.346) 20,000 (2,314) 14,340
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - unrestricted 52,009 39,274 5,984 97,267
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - unrestricted $ 48,663 $ 59,274 $ 3,670 $111,607

Note 19 - Subsequent Event

On January 15, 2003, Omnicare closed its $5.50 per
share cash tender offer for all of the issued and outstanding
shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock
of NCS. Omnicare accepted, on January 15, 2003, all validly
tendered shares for payment (totaling 17,510,126 shares of
Class A common stock, representing approximately 94% of
the then-outstanding Class A common stock, and 5,038,996
shares of Class B common stock, representing 100% of the
then-outstanding Class B common stock). Omnicare
subsequently acquired the remaining shares of Class A
common stock of NCS.

The acquisition of NCS, to be accounted for as a
purchase business combination, included cash consideration
and transaction costs of approximately $493 million. The cash
consideration included the payoff of certain NCS debt totaling
approximately $325.5 million, which was retired by Omnicare

OMNICARE, INC.

immediately following the acquisition. The Company financed
the acquisition with available cash, working capital and
borrowings under its three-year, $500.0 million revolving
credit facility. The Company has engaged an independent
valuation firm to assist with the determination of the initial
purchase price allocation, including the identification of
goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets.

At the time of the acquisition, NCS provided professional
pharmacy and related services to long-term care facilities,
including skilled nursing centers and assisted living facilities
comprising approximately 199,000 beds in 33 states and
managed hospital pharmacies in 10 states. Omnicare expects
to achieve certain economies of scale and operational
efficiencies from the acquisition, while broadening
Omnicare's geographical reach. The net assets and operating
results of NCS will be included from the date of acquisition in
the Companyss financial statements beginning in the first
quarter of 2003.
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Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

Omnicare, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(In thousands, except per share data) For the vears ended and at December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:@®i©
Total net sales® $2,632,754 $2,183,036 $1,987,83%  $1,880,998 $1,536,224
Net income $ 123,906 $ 74,271 $ 48817 $ 57,721 $ 80,379
Earnings per share data:

Basic $ 1.34 $ 0.80 $ 053 % 063 § 0.90

Diluted $ 1.33 3 0.79 $ 053 % 063 $ 0.90 1
Dividends per share $ 0.09 $ 0.0 % 009 $ 009 $ 0.08
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding:

Basic 94,168 93,124 92,012 90,999 89,081

Diluted 94,905 93,758 92,012 91,238 89,786
BALANCE SHEET DATA:@
Cash and cash equivalents (inchuding restricted cash) § 141,083 $ 171,318 $ 113907 $ 97267 $ D4.312
Working capital 704,908 658,321 560,729 430,102 369,749
Total assets 2,427,383 2,290,276 2,210,218 2,167,973 1,903,829
Long-term debt (excluding current portion)®© 720,187 750,669 780,706 736,944 651,556
Stockholders’ equity 1,275,062 1,149,783 1,068,423 1,028,380 963,471
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA:»
EBITDA® $ 301,849 $ 247,564 $ 204660 $ 205669 $ 203,757
Net cash flows from operating activities 159,109 153,087 132,701 101,114 89,507
Net cash flows from investing activities (152,383) (46,802) (76,116) (203,517) (449,718)
Capital expenditures® 24,648 26,222 32,423 58,749 53,179
Net cash flows from financing activities (37,9606) (49,555) (41,777) 145,502 276,652

The financial information above should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

(a) Omnicare, Inc. (“Omnicare” or the “Company”) has had an active acquisition program in effect since 1989. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for information concerning these acquisitions.

(b} Included in the net income amounts are the following aftertax charges (credits) (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Restructuring and other related charges $14,381 $11,374m $17,135% $22,698 $ 2,689
Other expense —_ 2,987 — — —
Acquisition expenses, pooling-of-interests —_ — — (376) 13,869
Total $14,381 $14,361 $17,135 $22,322 $16,558

(1) See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(2) See Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) In accordance with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), Omnicare
discontinued amortization of goodwill as of January 1, 2002. Accordingly, no goodwill amortization was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2002.
Included in the net income amounts are the following aftertax goodwill amortization expense amounts (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Goodwill amortization $ - $20,583 $20,582 $19,675 $13,649

(d) In accordance with the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for
‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred” (“EITF No. 01-14"), Omnicare has recorded reimbursements received for “out-of-pocket” expenses on a grossed-up basis in
the income statement as revenues and direct costs. EITF No. 01-14 relates solely to the Company's contract research services business. The prior year income
statements have also been adjusted to reflect the impact of EITF No. 01-14, as required per U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”).

(e) [n 2001, the Company issued $375.0 million of Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011. See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

{f) “EBITDA” represents earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. Omnicare believes that certain investors find EBITDA to be a useful
tool for measuring a company's ability to service its debt; however, EBITDA does not represent net cash flows from operating activities, as defined by U.S. GAAP,
and should not be considered as a substitute for net income as an indicator of Omnicare's operating performance or operating cash flows as a measure of liquidity.
Omnicare’s calculation of EBITDA may differ from the calculation of EBITDA by others. The following is a reconciliation of the EBITDA calculation (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Net income $125,906 $ 74,271 $ 48,817 $ 57,721 $ 80,379
Add: Income taxes 77,145 45,514 28,706 33,950 55,487
Interest expense, net of investment income 53,335 53,709 53,164 44,634 20,255
Depreciation and amortization 45,263 74.070 73,973 69,364 47,636
EBITDA 301,849 247,564 204,660 205,669 203,737
Subtract; Income taxes (77,145) (45,514) (28,706) (33,950) (55,487)
Interest expense, net of investment income {53,333) (53,709) (53,164) (44,634) (20,255)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from acquisition of businesses (67,711) (40,860) (43.389) (75.298) (60,440)
Add: Deferred tax provision 15,428 17,303 19,767 23,073 1,579
Provision for doubtful accounts 31,163 25,490 26,729 22,056 12,405
Non-cash portion of restructuring charges 9,060 2,811 6,804 4,198 1,948
Net cash flows from operating activities $159,109 $153,087 $132,701 $101,114 $ 89,507

(g) Primarily represents the purchase of computer equipment and software, machinery and equipment, and furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A”)

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements, related notes and
other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report.
In addition, see “Safe Harbor Statement under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Regarding Forward-
Looking Information.”

Results of Operations

The following table presents net sales and results of
operations for Omnicare, Inc. (“Omnicare” or the “Company”),
for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 (in thousands, except per share amounts). In accordance
with the SEC’s recent release entitled “Conditions for Use of
Non-GAAP Financial Measures,” the Company has disclosed
in this MD&A, with the exception of earnings before interest,
income taxes, depreciation and amortization {“EBITDA”)
(discussed below), only those measures that are in accordance
with United States ("U.S.”) Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP™).

For the years ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

$2,632,734 $2,183.036 $1.987,839

Total net sales

Net income $ 125906 $ 74271 $ 48817
Earnings per share:
Basic $ .34 $ 080 % 0.53
Diluted $ 1.33 § 079 § 0.53
EBITDA® $ 301,849 $ 247564 $ 204,660

(a) See Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data for a
reconciliation of EBITDA to net cash flows from operating
activities.

The Company believes that certain investors find EBITDA
to be a useful tool for measuring a company's ability to service
its debt; however, EBITDA does not represent net cash flows
from operating activities, as defined by U.S. GAAP, and should
not be considered as a substitute for net earnings as an
indicator of the Company’s operating performance or
operating cash flows as a measure of liquidity. The Company’s
calculation of EBITDA may differ from the calculation of
EBITDA by others.

The Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) Issue No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization
of Reimbursements Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses
Incurred” ("EITF No. 01-14"), which requires that, in cases
where a company acts as a principal, reimbursements
received for “out-of-pocket” expenses incurred be characterized
as revenue and the associated costs be included as expenses
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in the Company’s income statement. As a result of this
accounting pronouncement, which affects only the Company’s
Contract Research Organization ("CRO”) business, CRO
revenues and direct costs may fluctuate significantly based on
the timing of when reimbursable expenses are incurred. EITF
No. 01-14 had the effect of increasing both sales and cost of
sales by $26.3 million, $23.9 million and $16.5 million pretax
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Accordingly, it had no impact on operating or net
income.

Effective January 1, 2002, in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB") Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{("SFAS”) No. 142, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
("SFAS 1427), eliminating the amortization of goodwill related
to acquisitions. Accordingly, no goodwill amortization was
recorded during the 2002 year. This accounting standard would
have had the effect of adding approximately $33.2 million
pretax ($20.6 million aftertax, or $0.22 per diluted share)
and $32.7 million pretax ($20.6 million aftertax, or $0.22
per diluted share) to net income for the vears ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

2002 vs. 2001

Consolidated

Total net sales for 2002 increased to $2,632.8 million
from $2,183.0 million in 2001. Diluted earnings per share
were $1.33 for the year ended December 31, 2002 versus
$0.79 in 2001. Net income for 2002 was $125.9 million
versus $74.3 million in 2001. EBITDA for 2002 totaled
$301.8 million in comparison with $247.6 million for 2001.

Included in 2002 and 2001 were aggregate charges
of $23.2 million and $18.3 million pretax, respectively
($14.4 million and $11.4 million aftertax, or $0.15 and
$0.12 per diluted share, respectively), relating to the Phase 1]
productivity and consolidation program described hereafter
under “Restructuring and Other Related Charges.” The
charges were primarily comprised of employee severance pay,
employment agreement buy-out costs, lease termination costs,
the write-off of leasehold improvements and other assets, and
professional fees and other facility exit costs.

Inciuded in the 2001 results are other expense items
totaling $4.8 million pretax ($3.0 miilion aftertax, or $0.03
per diluted share). Specifically, in early 2001, Omnicare
recorded a $1.8 million pretax special charge representing
a repayment to the Medicare program of overpayments made
to one of the Companys pharmacy units during the period
from January 1997 through April 1998. As part of its
corporate compliance program, the Company learned of the .
overpayments, which related to Medicare Part B claims that
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contained documentation errors, and notified the Health Care
Financing Administration (now known as the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services) for review and determination
of the amount of overpayment. Further, the Company recorded
a $3.0 million pretax special charge in mid-2001, representing
a settlement in June 2001 of certain contractual issues with a
customer, which issues and amount relate to prior year periods.

Pharmacy Services Segment

Omnicare’s Pharmacy Services segment recorded sales
of $2,467.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, -
exceeding the 2001 amount of $2,033.8 million by
$433.4 million, or 21.3%. At December 31, 2002, Omnicare
served long-term care facilities comprising approximately
754,000 beds as compared with approximately 662,000 beds
served at December 31, 2001. The increase in beds served
was a result of the acquisition of American Pharmaceutical
Services, Inc. and other related entities (collectively, “APS”),
as discussed below, and the efforts of the Companys National
Sales & Marketing Group and pharmacy staff to develop new
contracts with long-term care facilities. The increase in sales
relating to the APS acquisition approximated $240 million.
Additionally, Pharmacy Services sales increased due to the
continued implementation and expansion of the Company’s
clinical and other service programs, drug price inflation, and
the increased market penetration of newer drugs, which often
carry higher prices but are significantly more effective in
reducing overall healthcare costs than those they replace.
Lower government reimbursement formulas in some states
partially offset the increase in pharmacy sales. The Company
estlimates that drug price inflation for its highest dollar
volume products in 2002 was approximately 5%.

Operating profit of the Pharmacy Services segment was
$288.2 million in 2002, an $87.4 million improvement as
compared with the $200.8 million earned in 2001. As a
percentage of the segment’s sales, operating profit was 11.7%
in 2002, compared with 9.9% in 2001. The improved operating
profit was primarily the result, of increased sales, as discussed
above, a lower operating cost structure reflecting principally
the impact of the productivity and consolidation initiative
started in the third quarter of 2001 (the “Phase Il Program”),
the overall synergies realized from the APS integration
(although margins were initially unfavorably impacted early in
2002 by the addition of the lower margin APS business), the
exclusion of goodwill amortization in 2002 as previously
discussed (an expense that totaled $32.1 million pretax in
2001), the year-to-year $1.7 million favorable impact of
restructuring charges (which totaled $6.8 million pretax in
2002 compared with $8.5 million pretax in 2001), and
other expense items in 2001 totaling $4.8 million pretax.
Improvement in operating performance in 2002 was also
attributable to a more stable and gradually improving
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operating environment in the skilled nursing facility (“SNF")
market, a result of enactment of the Medicare, Medicaid and
SCHIP Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1399 (“BBRA”) and
the Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Benefits Improvement and
Protection Act of 2000 (“BIPA”). However, certain payment
increases provided under these acts expired on October 1,
2002 with no further action taken by Congress to date. The
impact of these expirations on the Company’s customers did
not result in a significant impact to Omnicare in 2002,
Congress may consider these funding issues in 2003, however,
if no additional legislation is enacted, the loss of revenues
associated with this occurrence could have an adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Companys SNF clients which
could, in turn, adversely affect the timing or level of their
payments to Omnicare. Other healthcare funding issues
remain, including pressures on federal and state Medicaid
budgets due to the economic downturn which has led to
decreasing reimbursement rates in certain states. While the
Company has managed to adjust to these pricing pressures to
date, such pressures are likely to continue or escalate if
economic recovery does not emerge and there can be no
assurance that such occurrence will not have an adverse
impact on the Company’s business.

In January 2002, Omnicare completed the acquisition of
the assets comprising the pharmaceutical business of APS.
The acquisition, accounted for as a purchase business
combination, included cash consideration and transaction
costs which aggregated approximately $114 million (including
an adjustment based on the closing balance sheet review). Up
to an additional $18.0 million in total deferred payments may
become payable in annual increments of up to $6.0 million
each, contingent upon future performance, as evaluated in
the first quarter of each of the next three years.

At the time of the acquisition, APS provided professional
pharmacy and related consulting services to approximately
60,000 residents of skilled nursing and assisted living
facilities through its network of 32 pharmacies in 15 states, as
well as respiratory and Medicare Part B services for residents
of long-term care facilities. The net assets and operating
results of APS have been included in the Company’s financial
statements beginning in the first quarter of 2002.

On January 15, 2003, Omnicare closed its $5.50 per
share cash tender offer for all of the issued and outstanding
shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock
of NCS HealthCare, Inc. (“NCS”). Omnicare accepted, on
January 15, 2003, all validly tendered shares for payment
{totaling 17,510,126 shares of Class A common stock,
representing approximately 94% of the then-outstanding
Class A common stock, and 5,038,996 shares of Class B
common stock, representing 100% of the then-cutstanding
Class B common stock). Omnicare subsequently acquired the
remaining shares of Class A common stock of NCS.
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The acquisition of NCS, to be accounted for as a purchase
business combination, included cash consideration and
transaction costs of approximately $493 million. The cash
consideration included the payoff of certain NCS debt totaling
approximately $325.5 million, which was retired by Cmnicare
immediately following the acquisition. The Company financed
the acquisition with available cash, working capital and
borrowings under its three-year, $500.0 million revolving
credit facility.

At the time of the acquisition, NCS provided professional
pharmacy and related services to long-term care facilities,
including skilled nursing centers and assisted living facilities
comprising approximately 199,000 beds in 33 states and
managed hospital pharmacies in 10 states. Omnicare expects
to achieve certain economies of scale and operational
efficiencies from the acquisition, while broadening Omnicare’s
geographical reach. The net assets and operating results of
NCS will be included from the date of acquisition in the
Company’s financial statements beginning in the first quarter
of 2003.

CRO Services Segment

Omnicare’s CRO Services segment recorded revenues of
$165.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, which
were $16.2 million, or 10.9%, greater than the $149.3 million
recorded in 2001. In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, the
Company included $26.3 million and $23.9 million of
reimbursable out-of-pockets in its CRO Services segment
reported revenue and direct cost amounts for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Despite volatility
in revenues in the latter half of 2002 related to client-driven
delays or cancellations of certain projects, the increase in
CRO Services revenue was achieved due to solid business
gains arising from the efforts of the Company’s integrated
global selling efforts and relative stability in the overall drug
research market. Higher levels of demand were recognized
from both major pharmaceutical manufacturers and
biotechnology companies, and the Companys expanding
presence throughout the world.

Operating income in the CRO Services segment was
$4.6 million in 2002 compared with $2.5 million in 2001. As
a percentage of the segment's revenue, operating profit was
2.8% in 2002 compared with 1.7% in 2001. The improvement
in operating performance was attributable to the favorable
impact of the aforementioned increase in revenues, the
realization of benefits from the Company’s initiatives to
integrate and streamline the organization, and the exclusion
of goodwill amortization in 2002 (which totaled $1.1 million
pretax in 2001). Offsetting the improvement in operating
performance was the $6.6 million year-to-year impact
of restructuring charges associated with the Phase II
productivity and consolidation program, which totaled
$16.4 million pretax in 2002 compared with $9.8 million in
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2001. Backlog at December 31, 2002 was $181.6 million,
representing a decrease of $13.9 million from December 31,
2001 backlog of $195.5 million due to projects moving out of
backlog, as well as the cancellation of certain projects in 2002,

Consolidated

The Company's consolidated gross profit of $691.1 million
increased $111.7 million in 2002 from the prior year amount
of $579.4 million. Gross profit as a percentage of total net
sales of 26.2% in the year ended December 31, 2002, was
slightly lower than the 26.5% experienced during 2001.
Positively impacting overall gross profit was the Company’s
purchasing leverage associated with the procurement of
pharmaceuticals, due in part to efforts in integrating the APS
business and benefits realized from the Company's formulary
compliance program, as well as the leveraging of fixed and
variable overhead costs at the Company’s pharmacies through
the reduced cost structure brought about by the Phase Il
Program. These favorable factors were offset primarily by the
initial impact of the lower-margin APS business and, 1o a
lesser extent, the previously mentioned shift in mix towards
newer, branded drugs which typically produce higher gross
profit, but lower gross profit margins, and the effects of lower
government reimbursement formulas in some states.

Sales mix for the Company also impacts gross profit and
includes primarily sales of pharmaceuticals and, to a lesser
extent, contract research services, infusion therapy products
and services, medical supplies, and other miscellaneous
products and services. Sales of pharmaceuticals account for
the majority of the Company’s sales and gross profit. Contract
research services and infusion therapy gross profits are
typically higher than gross profits associated with sales of
pharmaceuticals.

Increased leverage in purchasing favorably impacts gross
profit and is primarily derived through discounts from
suppliers. Leveraging of fixed and variable overhead costs
primarily relates to generating higher sales volumes from
pharmacy facilities with no increase in fixed costs (e.g., rent)
and minimal increases in variable costs (e.g., utilities), as
well as the elimination of pharmacies through the Companys
productivity and consolidation initiatives, further discussed
below. The Company believes it will be able to continue to
leverage fixed and variable overhead costs through internal
and acquired growth.

The Company is generally able to obtain price increases
t0 cover drug price inflation. In order to enhance its gross
profit margins, the Company strategically allocates its
resources to those activities that will increase internal sales
growth and favorably impact sales mix, or will lower costs.

In addition, through the ongoing development of its
pharmaceutical purchasing programs, the Company is able
to obtain discounts and thereby manage its pharmaceutical
costs.
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Omnicare’s selling, general and administrative
(“operating”) expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002
of $411.3 million were higher than the 2001 amount of
$349.5 million, by $61.8 million, due to the overall growth
of the business, including the acquisition of APS. Operating
expenses as a percentage of total net sales, however, totaled
15.6% in 2002, representing a decline from the 16.0%
experienced in 2001. This decline is due to the year-over-year
favorable impact of the Phase 11 Program and the leveraging
of fixed and variable overhead costs over a larger sales base
in 2002 than that which existed in 2001,

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2002
was $3.3 million, an improvement of $0.7 miilion over the 2001
year. Larger average invested cash balances during 2002 as
compared with 2001, partially offset by the impact of lower
interest rates in 2002 versus 2001, was the primary driver of
the slight increase in investment income.

Interest expense during 2002 of $56.8 million was
relatively consistent with the comparable prior year amount
of $56.3 million.

The effective income tax rate was 38% in 2002,
consistent with the prior year. The effective tax rates in 2002
and 2001 are higher than the federal statutory rate largely as
a result of the combined impact of state and local income
taxes, various nondeductible expenses and tax-accrual
adjustments.

2001 vs. 2000

Consolidated

Total net sales for 2001 increased to $2,183.0 million
from $1,987.8 million in 2000. Diluted earnings per share
were $0.79 for the year ended December 31, 2001 versus
$0.53 in 2000. Net income for 2001 was $74.3 million versus
$48.8 million in 2000. EBITDA for 2001 was $247.6 million in
comparison to $204.7 million for 2000.

Included in 2001 and 2000 were aggregate charges of
$18.3 million and $27.2 million pretax ($11.4 million and
$17.1 million aftertax, or $0.12 and $0.19 per diluted share,
respectively) relating to certain productivity and consolidation
programs described hereafter under “Restructuring and Other
Related Charges.” Additionally, included in the 2001 period
were other expense items totaling $4.8 million pretax
($3.0 million aftertax}, described in detail above.

Pharmacy Services Segment
Omnicare’s Pharmacy Services segment recorded
sales of $2,033.8 million for the vear ended December 31,
2001, exceeding the 2000 amount of $1,858.7 million by
$175.1 million, or 9.4%. The increase represents the
continued internal growth of the Pharmacy Services business,
due primarily to net growth in the number of nursing facility
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residents serviced, the expansion of clinical programs, and a
favorable shift in the mix toward new, higher-priced branded
pharmaceuticals. The growth in the number of residents
serviced was generated through the efforts of the Company’s
National Sales & Marketing Group and pharmacy staff in
developing new pharmacy contracts with long-term care
facilities, net of the elimination of certain high credit risk or
uneconomic accounts. At December 31, 2001, Omnicare
served long-term care facilities comprising approximately
662,000 beds as compared with approximately 636,500 beds
served at December 31, 2000, a net increase during 2001 of
25,500 beds, which was nearly five times greater than the net
increase experienced during 2000. The increasing market
penetration of newer drugs, which often carry higher prices
but are more effective in reducing overall healthcare costs
than those they replace, also served to increase Pharmacy
Services sales. The Company estimates that drug price
inflation for its highest dollar volume products in 2001 was
5%. The factors favorably impacting sales growth in 2001
were offset in part by a decrease of $6.2 million in infusion
therapy sales as compared with 2000, a result of the decrease
in the number of higher acuity patients serviced.

Operating profit of the Pharmacy Services segment was
$200.8 million in 2001, a $44.2 million improvement as
compared with the $156.6 million in 2000. As a percentage
of the segment’s sales, operating profit was 9.9% in 2001,
compared to 8.4% in 2000. The improved operating profit
was primarily the result of increased sales, as discussed
above, the $13.1 million year-to-vear favorable impact of
restructuring charges associated with the productivity and
consolidation programs, which totaled $8.5 million pretax in
the 2001 year compared with $21.6 million pretax in 2000,
and a lower operating cost structure reflecting principally
the full period impact of the productivity and consolidation
initiative completed in 2000 (the “Phase [ Program”).
Improvement in operating performance in 2001 was also
attributable to a more stable and gradually improving
operating environment in the skilled nursing facility market,

a result of enactment of the BBRA and the BIPA. During 2001,
many of the customers of the Companys Pharmacy Services
segment realized the benefits of higher statutory reimbursement
rates in conjunction with the implementation of the BBRA and
BIPA. Offsetting the improvement in operating profit were the
$4.8 million other expense items, discussed above.

CRO Services Segment
Cmnicare’s CRO Services segment recorded revenues of
$149.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, which
were $20.2 million, or 15.6%, greater than the $129.1 million
recorded in 2000. In accordance with EITF No. 01-14, the
Company included $23.9 million and $16.5 million of
reimbursable out-of-pockets in its CRO Services segment
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reported revenue and direct cost amounts for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
increase in CRO Services revenue was due to a recovery
of the drug research market, as well as the efforts of the
Companys integrated global selling efforts. Higher levels
of demand were recognized from both major pharmaceutical
manufacturers and biotechnology companies, and the Company’s
growing presence in the Pacific Rim countries contributed to
the revenue increase.

Operating profit of the CRO Services segment was
$2.5 million in 2001 compared with $1.7 million in 2000. As
a percentage of the segment’s revenue, operating profit was
1.7% in 2001 compared with 1.3% in 2000. The improvement
in operating performance was attributable to the favorable
impact of the aforementioned increase in revenues, the overall
stabilization of the drug research market following several
large pharmaceutical company mergers in 2000, as well as
the realization of benefits from the Companys initiatives to
integrate and streamline the organization. Offsetting the
improvement in operating performance was the $4.2 million
impact of restructuring charges associated with the Phase I
productivity and consolidation program, which totaled
$9.8 million pretax in the 2001 year compared with
$5.6 million pretax in 2000.

Consclidated

The Company’s consolidated gross profit as a percentage
of total net sales of 26.5% in the year ended December 31,
2001 improved from the rate of 26.4% experienced during
2000, and represented a year-over-year increase in gross
profit of approximately $54.0 million to $579.4 million.
Positively impacting overall gross profit were the Company’s
purchasing leverage associated with the procurement of
pharmaceuticals and benefits realized from the Companys
formulary compliance program, as well as the leveraging of
fixed and variable overhead costs at the Company’s pharmacies
and the full period impact of the reduced cost structure brought
about by the Phase I Program completed in 2000. These
favorable factors were offset in part by the previously mentioned
shift in mix towards newer, branded drugs which typically
produce higher gross profit, but lower gross profit margins.

Cmnicare’s operating expenses for the vear ended
December 31, 2001 of $349.5 million were higher than the
2000 amount of $334.8 million, by $14.7 million, due to the
overall growth of the business. Operating expenses as a
percentage of total net sales, however, totaled 16.0% in 2001,
representing a decline from the 16.8% experienced in 2000.
This decline is primarily due to the full period favorable
impact of the Phase I Program, which was successfully
completed in late 2000, the leveraging of fixed and variable
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overhead costs over a larger sales base in 2001 than that
which existed in 2000, and the integration and streamlining
of the CRO business.

Investment income for the year ended December 31, 2001
was $2.6 million, an improvement of $0.7 million over the
same period of 2000. Larger average invested cash balances
during 2001 as compared to 2000 was the primary driver of
the increase in investment income.

Interest expense during 2001 was $56.3 million, an
increase of $1.2 million versus the comparable prior year
period. This increase was largely due to the impact of an
increase in amortization of debt issuance costs classified as
interest expense, relating to the first quarter 2001 debt
transactions, partially offset by the reduction in outstanding
debt, as discussed at the "Financial Condition, Liquidity and
Capital Resources” section below. Also unfavorably impacting
2001 interest expense was a marginal increase in the
weighted average interest rates paid on outstanding debt
brought about by the aforementioned debt transactions. These
transactions converted a substantial portion of the Company’s
outstanding debt under revolving credit facilities, which are
subject to variable rates of interest, to senior subordinated
notes, which are subject to a higher, fixed rate of interest, but
which also have a longer term.

The increase in the effective income tax rate to 38% in
2001 from 37% in the prior year is primarily attributable to
the full utilization in 2000 of certain benefits derived from the
Companys state tax planning program. While other state tax
planning benefits will continue, they will be realized at a
different magnitude than was the case in 2000. The effective
tax rates in 2001 and 2000 are higher than the federal
statutory rate largely as a result of the combined impact of
various nondeductible expenses (primarily intangible asset
amortization and acquisition costs), state and local income
taxes and tax-accrual adjustments.

Restructuring and Other Related Charges

Phase [ Program

In 2000, the Company completed its previously disclosed
productivity and consolidation program (the “Phase 1
Program”). The Phase I Program was implemented to allow
the Company to gain maximum benefit from its acquisition
program and to respond to changes in the healthcare industry.
As part of the Phase I Program, the roster of pharmacies and
other operating locations was reconfigured through the
consolidation, relocation, closure and opening of sites, resulting
in a net reduction of 59 locations. The Phase I Program also
resulted in the reduction of the Company's work force by 16%,
or approximately 1,800 full- and part-time employees.
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Details of the restructuring and other related charges
relating to the Phase [ productivity and consolidation program
follow (in thousands):

In connection with this program, over the 1999 and 2000
periods, Omnicare recorded a total of $62.6 million pretax
($39.8 million after taxes) for restructuring and other related

Utilized Balance at charges, of which $27.2 million pretax ($17.1 million after
2000 during  December 31,  taxes, or $0.19 per diluted share) related to the 2000 year.
Provision 2000 2000 The restructuring charges inclided severance pay, the buy-out

Restructuring charges: of employment agreements, the buy-out of lease obligations,
Employee severance $ 3.296 $ (8,367) $ 3.390 the write-off of other assets (representing a project-to-date
Employment cumulative amount of $11.0 million of pretax non-cash items,

agreement buy-outs 1.048 (3,735) 676  through December 31, 2000) and facility exit costs. The other
Lease terminations 1,881 (3.811) 2,593 related charges were primarily comprised of consulting fees
Other assets and _ and duplicate costs associated with the program, as well as
facility exit costs 10,627 (9.737) 2538 the write-off of certain non-core healthcare investments.
Total restructuring As of December 31, 2002, the Company had paid
charges 16,852 $(25,650) $ 9,197 approximately $23.3 million of severance and other employee-
related costs relating to the reduction of approximately 1,800
Other related employees. The remaining liabilities at December 31, 2002
charges 10.347 represent amounts not yet paid relating to actions taken
Total restructuring (comprised of remaining lease payments), and will be adjusted
and other as these matters are settled.
Icil:ﬁgegs $27.199 Phase Il Program . .
In 2001, the Company announced the implementation of
Utilized Balance at a second phase of the productivity and consolidation initiative
during  December 31,  (the “Phase Il Program”). The Phase Il Program, completed
2001 2001 on September 30, 2002, further streamlined operations,

Restructuring charges: increased efficiencies and helped enhance the Company's
Employee severance $ (2,997) $ 303 position as a high quality, cost-effective provider of
Employment pharmaceutical services. Building on the previous efforts, the

agreement buy-outs (676) - Phase II Program included the merging or closing of seven
Lease terminations (1,775) 818 pharmacy locations and the reconfiguration in size and
Other assets and function of an additional ten locations. The Phase II Program
facility exit costs (2,299) 239 also included a reduction in occupied building space in certain
Total restructuring locations and the rationalization or reduction of staffing levels
charges $ (7,747) $ 1,450 in the CRO business in order to better garner the efficiencies
of the integration and functional reorganization of that
Utilized Balance at business.'The Phase I Program encompass_ed a net reduction
during  December 31, of approximately 460 employees, or about 5% of the
D002 2002 Company’s total workforce, across both the Pharmacy
Services and CRO Services segments.

Restructuring charges: In connection with the Phase Il Program, the Company
Employee severance 5 (398) 5 - expensed a total of $18.3 million pretax ($11.4 million
Employment aftertax, or $0.12 per diluted share) for restructuring

agmemept bgy—outs - o charges during the year ended December 31, 2001. Further,
giﬁ:re ;:g:;sn 238“8 (246) 512 approximately $23.2 million pretax ($14.4 million aftertax, or
facility exit costs (239) _ $0.15 per diluted share) was recorded during the year ended

. December 31, 2002, when the amounts were required to be

Total restructuring recognized in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The restructuring

charges $ (878) $ 572 charges included severance pay, the buy-out of employment
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agreements, the buy-out of lease obligations, the write-off of
leasehold improvements and other assets, and related fees
and facility exit costs.

Details of the pretax restructuring charges relating to the
Phase i1 Program follow (in thousands):

2001 Utilized Balance at
Provision/ during  December 31,
Accrual 2001 2001
Restructuring charges:
Employee
severance $ 4256 $ (2,614) $1.642
Employment
agreement buy-outs 2,086 {1,678) 508
Lease terminations 2,111 (2,105) 606
Other assets, fees and
facility exit costs 9,291 (6,264) 3,027
Total restructuring
charges $18,344 $(12.561) $5.783
2002 Utilized Balance at
Provision/ during  December 31,
Accrual 2002 2002
Restructuring charges:
Employee
severance $ 2177 $ (2.633) $1,164
Employment
agreement buy-outs — (214) 294
Lease terminations 5,862 {1,846) 4,622
Other assets, fees and
facility exit costs 15,156 {14,690) 3.493
Total restructuring
charges $23,195 $(19.405) $9.573

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had paid
approximately $7.1 million of severance and other employee-
related costs relating to the reduction of approximately 460
employees. The remaining liabilities recorded at December 31,
2002 represent amounts not yet paid or settled relating to
actions taken, and will be adjusted in future periods as these
matters are finalized.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation has not materially affected Omnicare’s
profitability inasmuch as price increases have generally
been obtained to cover inflationary drug cost increases.

OMNICARE, INC.

Financial Condition, Liguidily
and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2002 were
$141.1 million compared with $171.3 million at December 31,
2001 (including restricted cash amounts of $3.1 million and
$2.9 million, respectively). The Company generated positive
cash flows from operating activities of $159.1 million during
the year ended December 31, 2002 compared with net
cash flows from operating activities of $153.1 million and
$132.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. These operating cash flows were used
primarily for acquisition-related payments (further discussed
below), capital expenditures, debt repayment and dividends.
The increase in cash generated from operations during 2002
was driven primarily by earnings growth, as previously
discussed in the “Results of Operations” section.

Net cash used in investing activities was $152.4 million,
$46.8 million and $76.1 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Acquisitions of businesses required cash
payments of $127.8 million (including amounts payable
pursuant to acquisition agreements relating to pre-2002
acquisitions) in 2002, which were funded by borrowings under
the Revolving Credit Facility and operating cash flows.
Acquisitions of businesses during 2001 and 2000 required
$20.3 million and $41.7 million, respectively, of cash
payments (including amounts payable pursuant to acquisition
agreements relating to pre-2001 and pre-2000 acquisitions,
respectively) which were primarily funded by operating cash
flows. The Company’s capital requirements are primarily
comprised of capital expenditures, largely relating to
investments in the Company’s information technology systems,
and ongoing payments originating from its acquisition
program. There were no material commitments and
contingencies outstanding at December 31, 2002, other than
the Company’s cash tender offer for all of the outstanding
shares of NCS and related redemption or repayment of
existing NCS debt, discussed further below. Additionally,
certain acquisition-related payments potentially due in the
future, including deferred payments, indemnification payments
and paymenls originating from earnout provisions (including
up to an additional $18.0 million relating to APS, contingent
upon performance, payable in annual increments of up to
$6.0 million each as evaluated in the first quarter of each of
the next three years) may become payable.

Net cash used for financing activities was $38.0 million,
$49.6 million and $41.8 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. During 2002, the Company used $120.0 million
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in cash generated from its operations to fully pay down the
outstanding obligations under its revolving credit facility,
including the $80.0 million drawn down in early 2002 in
connection with the aforementioned APS acquisition.

On February 6, 2003, the Companys Board of Directors
declared a quarterly cash dividend of 2.25 cents per share
for an indicated annual rate of 9 cents per common share
for 2003, which is consistent with annual dividends paid per
common share for the 2002, 2001 and 2000 years. Aggregate
dividends of $8.5 million paid during the year ended
December 31, 2002 were comparable with the $8.5 million
and $8.3 million paid for the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

The Company’s current ratio was 3.4 to 1.0 at December
31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.

Disclosures About QOft-Balance Sheet
Arrangements and Aggregate
Contractual Obligations

At December 31, 2002, the Company did not have any
unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured finance or special
purpose entities, which might have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements.

The following summarizes the Company's contractual
obligations at December 31, 2002, and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on the Company's liquidity

and cash flows in future periods.
Contractual Obligations (in thousands):
Less than
Total™ 1 year 1-3 years""

Long-term debt

obligations $720,000 $ — $ —
Capital lease

obligations 297 110 187
Operating lease

obligations 114,922 20,544 34,182
Total contractual

cash obligations ~ $835,219  $20,654 $34,369

After
4-5 vears b years

Long-term debt

obligations $345,000 $375,000
Capital lease

obligations — —
Operating lease

obligations 37,172 23,024
Total contractual

cash obligations  $382,172 $398.024

(1) In January 2003, the Company borrowed $499.0 million under the
Revolving Credit Facility to finance its acquisition of NCS (see Note
19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
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As of December 31, 2002, the Company had approximately
$7.5 million outstanding relating to standby letters of credit,
substantially all of which are subject to automatic annual
renewals.

In March 2001, the Company completed the issuance. at
par value, of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior subordinated
notes (the “Senior Notes”), due 2011. The Senior Notes were
subsequently exchanged for replacement notes with identical
terms, which were registered with the Securities and
Fixchange Commission. Concurrent with the issuance of the
Senior Notes, the Company entered into a new three-year
syndicated $495.0 million revolving line of credit facility (the
“Revolving Credit Facility”). Subsequent to the closing of the
Revolving Credit Facility, the Company received commitments
from additional financial institutions that allowed the
Company to increase the size of the Revolving Credit Facility
to $500.0 million. Net proceeds from the Senior Notes of
approximately $365.0 million and borrowings under the new
Revolving Credit Facility of approximately $70.0 million were
used to repay outstanding indebtedness under the Companys
former revolving credit facilities, which totaled $435.0 million
at December 31, 2000, and such former facilities were
terminated. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility
bear interest, at the Company’s option, at a rate equal to
either: (i) London Inter-bank Offerer Rate ("LIBOR”) plus
a margin that varies depending on certain ratings on the
Company’s long-term debt; or (ii) the higher of (a) the prime
rate or (b) the sum of the federal funds rate plus 0.50%.

The margin was 1.375% at December 31, 2002. Additionally,
the Company is charged a commitment fee on the unused
portion of the Revolving Credit Facility, which also varies
depending on such ratings. At December 31, 2002, the
commitment fee was 0.375%. The Revolving Credit Facility
had no outstanding loans, and $499.0 million of available
funds, at December 31, 2002.

In December 1997, the Company issued $345.0 million of
5.0% convertible subordinated debentures (the “Debentures”),
due 2007. The Debentures are convertible into common stock
at any time after March 4, 1998 at the option of the holder at
a price of $39.60 per share.

The Revolving Credit Facility, the Debentures and the
Senior Notes contain representations and warranties,
covenants and events of default customary for such facilities.
Interest rates charged on borrowings outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Facility are hased on prevailing market rates
as discussed in the following section.

On January 15, 2003, Omnicare closed its $5.50 per share
cash tender offer for all of the issued and outstanding shares
of Class A common stock and Class B common stock of NCS.
Omnicare accepted all validly-tendered shares for payment on
January 15, 2003. Omnicare subsequently acquired the
remaining shares of Class A common stock of NCS.
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The acquisition of NCS, to be accounted for as a purchase
business combination, included cash consideration and
transaction costs of approximately $493 million. The cash
consideration included the payoff of certain NCS debt totaling
approximately $325.5 million, which was retired by Omnicare
immediately following the acquisition. The Company financed
the acquisition with available cash, working capital and
borrowings under its three-year, $500.0 million revolving
credit facility.

The Company believes that net cash flows from operating
activities, credit facilities and other short- and long-term
debt financings, if any, will be sufficient to satisfy its future
working capital, acquisition contingency commitments, capital
expenditures, debt servicing and other financing requirements
for the foreseeable future. The Company is evaluating its
capital requirements and considering financing alternatives
to restructure currently outstanding borrowings over a
longer term. The Company may, in the future, refinance
its indebtedness, issue additional indebtedness, or issue
additional equity as deemed appropriate. The Company
believes that, if needed, these additional external sources
of financing are readily available.

Quantitative and Qualilative Disclosures
aboul Market Risk

Omnicare’s primary market risk exposure relates to
interest rate risk exposure through its borrowings. The
Company’s debt obligations at December 31, 2002 include
$345.0 million outstanding under 5.0% fixed rate Debentures,
due 2007, and $375.0 million outstanding under its 8.125%
fixed rate Senior Notes, due 2011. At December 31, 2002, the
approximate fair value of Omnicare’s Debentures and Senior
Notes was $329.0 million and $401.3 million, respectively. As
previously mentioned, there were no outstanding loans under
the Company's three-year, $500.0 million variable-rate
Revolving Credit Facility at December 31, 2002.

The Company has operations and revenue that occur
outside of the U.S. and transactions that are settied in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar, exposing it to market
risk related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
However, the substantial portion of the Company’s operations
and revenues and the substantial portion of the Company's
cash settlements are exchanged in U.S. dollars. Therefore,
changes in foreign currency exchange rates do not represent
a substantial market risk exposure to the Company.

The Company does not have any financial instruments
held for trading purposes, and does not hedge any of its
market risks with derivative instruments.

OMNICARE, INC.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements
requires management to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosures of contingencies. On an
on-going bhasis, the Company evaluates the estimates used,
including those related to bad debts, contractual allowances,
inventory valuation, impairment of goodwill, restructuring
accruals, income taxes, pension obligations and other
operating allowances and accruals. Management bases ils
estimates on historical experience, current conditions and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
Company believes the following critical accounting policies
involve more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognilion

Pharmacy Services

Revenue is recognized when products or services are
delivered or provided to the customer. A significant portion
of the Company’s revenues from sales of pharmaceutical and
medical products is reimbursable from state Medicaid and, to
a lesser extent, the federal Medicare programs. The Company
monitors its revenues and receivables from these
reimbursement sources, as well as other third-party insurance
payors, and records an estimated contractual allowance for
certain sales and receivable balances. Accordingly, the total
net sales and receivables reported in the Company’s financial
statements are recorded at the amount ultimately expected to
be received from these payors. Contractual allowances are
adjusted to actual as cash is received and claims are settled.
The Company evaluates several criteria in developing the
estimated contractual allowances on a monthly basis,
including historical trends based on actual claims paid,
current contract and reimbursement terms and changes in
customer base and payor/product mix.

Contract Research Services

A portion of the Company’s revenues are earned by
performing services under contracts with various
pharmaceutical, biotechnology, medical device and diagnostics
companies, based on contract terms. Most of the contracts
provide for services to be performed on a units of service
basis. These contracts specifically identify the units of service
and unit pricing. Under these contracts, revenue is generally
recognized upon completion of the units of service, unless the
units of service are performed over an extended peried of
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time. For extended units of service, revenue is recognized
based on labor hours expended as a percentage of total labor
hours expected to be expended. For time-and-materials
contracts, revenue is recognized at contractual hourly rates,
and for fixed-price contracts revenue is recognized using a
method similar to that used for extended units of service. The
Company's contracts provide for price renegotiations upon
scope of work changes. The Company recognizes revenue
related to these scope changes when underlying services are
performed and realization is assured. In a number of cases,
clients are required to make termination payments in addition
to payments for services already rendered. Any anticipated
losses resulting from contract performance are charged to
earnings in the period identified. Billings and payments are
specified in each contract. Revenue recognized in excess of
billings is classified as unbilled receivables, while billings in
excess of revenue are classified as deferred revenue on the
accompanying balance sheets. In accordance with EITF No.
01-14, the Company has recorded reimbursements received
for “out-of-pocket” expenses on a grossed-up basis in the
income statement as revenues and expenses, and has adjusted
the prior year income statements to reflect the impact of EITF
No. 01-14.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company establishes the allowance for doubtful
accounts based on historical credit losses and specifically
identified credit risks. Management reviews this allowance
on an ongoing basis for appropriateness. Factors considered
in determining the adequacy of the allowance include current
and expected economic conditions and each customer’s payment
history and creditworthiness. Judgment is used to assess the
collectibility of account balances, and the creditworthiness
of a customer. Given the Company’s experience, management
believes that the reserves for potential losses are adequate,
but if one or more of the Company’s larger customers were to
default on its obligations, the Company could be exposed to
losses in excess of the provisions established. If economic
conditions worsen, impacting the Companys customers’
ability to pay, management may adjust the allowance for
doubtful accounts.

mventories
The Company maintains inventory at lower of cost or
market, with cost determined on the basis of the first-in,
first-out method. There are no significant obsolescence
reserves recorded since the Company has not historically
experienced (nor does it expect to experience) significant
levels of inventory write-offs.
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Omnicare uses a periodic inventory system. Physical
inventories are typically performed on a monthly basis at ail
pharmacy sites, and in all cases at least once a quarter. Cost
of goods sold is recorded based on the actual results of the
physical inventory counts, and is estimated during those
circumstances when a physical inventory is not performed in
a particular month. The Company evaluates various criteria in
developing estimated cost of goods sold during non-inventory
months, including the historical cost of goods sold trends
based on prior physical inventory results; a review of cost of
goods sold information reflecting current customer contract
terms: and consideration and analysis of changes in customer
base, product mix, payor mix, state Medicaid and third-party
insurance reimbursement levels or other issues that may
impact cost of goods sold. Actual cost of goods sold have not
varied significantly from estimated amounts in non-inventory
months.

Goodwill

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and other indefinite lived
intangible assets be reviewed for impairment using a fair
value based approach upon adoption and at least annually
thereafter. SFAS 142 requires the Company to assess whether
there is an indication that goodwill is impaired, and requires
goodwill to be tested between annual tests if events occur or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce
the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.
The Company’s assessments to date have indicated that
goodwill has not been impaired. Events may occur in the
future which could result in an impairment of the Company’s
goodwill, and any resulting impairment charge could be
material to the Company’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

The assessment of goodwill impairment requires estimates
of future cash flows. To the extent the carrying value of the
assets exceed their fair value, an impairment loss would be
recorded. Changes in these estimates of future cash flows due
to unforeseen events could affect the outcome of the
Company’s impairment analysis.

Restructuring Programs

The Company has recorded accruals in connection with
its restructuring programs, primarily for facility exit costs and
involuntary termination benefits. The accruals were established
based on management’s best estimate of the costs to be
incurred, timing of payments and employee retention rates.
Changes in these estimates or actual results could require
the Company to make adjustments to the recorded accruals.
Management reviews these accruals on an on-going basis
for appropriateness.
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Employee Benefil Plans

For certain of its employee benefit plans, the Company
estimates the expected return on plan assets, discount rate,
rate of compensation increase and future healthcare costs,
among other items, and relies on actuarial estimates, to
assess the future potential liability and funding requirements.
These estimates, if assessed differently, could have an impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. However, a 1% change in the
discount rate used to calculate the Company’s pension
obligations would not have a material impact to the
Company’s operating results.

Income Taxes

The Company estimates its tax liabilities based on current
tax laws in the statutory jurisdictions in which it operates.
These estimates include judgments about deferred tax assets
and liabilities resulting from temporary differences between
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting
purposes and such amounts recognized for tax purposes,
as well as about the realization of deferred tax assets. If the
provisions for current or deferred taxes are not adequate, if
the Company is unabie to realize certain deferred tax assets
or if the tax laws change unfavorably, the Company could
experience polential losses. Likewise, if provisions for current
and deferred taxes are in excess of those eventually needed, if
the Company is able to realize additional deferred tax assets
or if tax laws change favorably, the Company could experience
polential gains.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission
of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” This Statement
updates, clarifies and simplifies existing accounting
pronouncements. This Statement is effective for the Company
beginning January 1, 2003. The adoption of the standard did
not have a material impact on the Companys consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting
for Cosis Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS
146"}. SFAS 146 addresses the recognition, measurement, and
reporting of costs that are associated with exit and disposal
activities, including costs related to terminating a contract that
is not a capital lease and termination benefits that employees
who are involuntarily terminated receive under the terms of a
one-time benefit arrangement that is not an on-going benefit
arrangement or an individual deferred-compensation contract.
SFAS 146 supersedes EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
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Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring)” and requires liabilities
associated with exit and disposal activities to be expensed
as incurred rather than at the date of the commitment to
an exit or disposal plan. SFAS 146 is effective for exit or
disposal activities of the Company that are initiated after
December 31, 2002.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147,
“Acquisition of Certain Financial Institutions,” which is not
applicable to the Company.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS 123" {“SFAS 1487).
While limited in scope, SFAS 148 provides additional
transition guidance for those entities that elect to voluntarily
adopt the accounting provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123"). The standard is
intended to encourage the adoption of the provisions of SFAS
123 by providing three transitional implementation
methodologies. Even for those companies choosing not to
adopt the provisions of SFAS 123, SFAS 148 includes new
disclosure requirements related to a companys issuance of
stock compensation. The transition and annual disclosure
provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for fiscal years ending
after December 13, 2002. The new interim disclosure
provisions are effective for the first interim period beginning
after December 15, 2002. The disclosure provisions of SFAS
148 have been incorporated into the notes to consolidated
financial statements and Omnicare currently intends to
continue accounting for stock-based compensation plans in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
Interpretations, as permitted by U.S. GAAP.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness
of Others” (“FIN 457), which expands previously issued
accounting guidance and disclosure requirements for certain
guarantees. FIN 45 requires Omnicare to recognize an initial
liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed by
issuing a guarantee. The provision for initial recognition
and measurement of the liability will be applied on a
prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions of FIN 45
have been incorporated into the notes to consolidated
financial statements, and its implementation has not had a
material impact on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.
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In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”), which
is not applicable to the Company.

Outlook

The Company derives approximately one-half of its
revenues directly from government sources, principally state
Medicaid and to a lesser extent federal Medicare programs,
and one-half from the private sector (including individual
residents, third-party insurers and SNFs).

In recent years, Congress has passed a number of federal
laws that have effected major changes in the healthcare
system. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (the “BBA”) sought
to achieve a balanced federal budget by. among other things,
changing the reimbursement policies applicable to various
healthcare providers. In a significant change for the SNF
industry, the BBA provided for the introduction in 1998 of
the prospective payment system (“PPS”) for Medicare-eligible
residents of SNFs. Prior to PPS, SNFs under Medicare
received cost-based reimbursement. Under PPS, Medicare
pays SNFs a fixed fee per patient per day based upon the
acuity level of the resident. covering substantially all items
and services furnished during a Medicare-covered stay,
including pharmacy services. PPS resulted in a significant
reduction of reimbursement to SNF's. Admissions of Medicare
residents, particularly those requiring complex care, declined
in many SNFs due {0 concerns relating to the adequacy of
reimbursement under PPS. This caused a weakness in
Medicare census leading to a significant reduction of overall
occupancy in the SNFs the Company serves. This decline in
occupancy and acuity levels adversely impacted Omnicare’s
results beginning in 1999, as the Company experienced lower
utilization of Omnicare services, coupled with PPS-related
pricing pressure from Omnicare’s SNF customers. In 1999 and
2000, Congress sought to restore some of the reductions in .
reimbursement resulting from PPS. A BBRA provision
(subsequently modified by BIPA) gave SNF'S a temporary rate
increase for certain specific high-acuity patients beginning
April 1, 2000, and ending when the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services ("CMS") implements a refined patient
classification system under PPS. CMS did not implement such
refinements in fiscal year 2003, and the Bush Administration
has indicated that the refinements aiso will not be
implemented in fiscal year 2004, thus continuing the
additional rate increases currently in place for certain high-
acuity patients. BBRA also included an overall 4% across the
board increase in payments otherwise determined under the
BBA for all patients for federal fiscal years 2001 and 2002.
In 2000, BIPA further increased reimbursement by means of
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a temporary 16.66% across the board increase in the nursing
component of the federal rate for all patients for services
furnished before October 1, 2002, and for fiscal year 2001,

a 3.16% rate increase for all patients. These provisions of
the BBRA and BIPA helped to improve the financial condition
of SNFs, motivated them to increase admissions, particularly
of higher acuity residents, and stabilized the unfavorahle
operating trends attributable to PPS. However, as noted,
certain of the increases in Medicare reimbursement for SNFs
provided for under the BBRA and the BIPA expired on Qctober
1, 2002 with no further action taken by Congress. Congress
may consider these funding issues in 2003. If no legislation is
enacted, the loss of revenues associated with this occurrence
could have an adverse effect on the financial condition of the
Companys SNF customers which, in turn, could adversely
affect the timing or level of their payments to Omnicare. While
it is hoped that Congress will restore some or all of these
reimbursement amounts, no assurances can be given as o
whether Congress will take such action in 2003.

Looking beyond the stabilization of Medicare funding for
skilled nursing facilities, other key healthcare funding issues
remain, including the pressures on federal and state Medicaid
budgets arising from the economic downturn which has led to
decreasing reimbursement rates in certain states. While the
Company has managed to adjust to these pricing pressures to
date, such pressures are likely to continue or escalate if
economic recovery does not emerge and there can be no
assurance that such occurrence will not have an adverse
impact on the Company's business. Longer term, funding for
federal and state healthcare programs must consider the
aging of the population and the growth in enrcllees as
eligibility is expanded; the escalation in drug costs owing to
higher drug utilization among seniors and the introduction of
new, more efficacious but also more expensive medications;
the implementation of a Medicare drug benefit for seniors; and
the long-term financing of the entire Medicare program. Given
competing national priorities, it remains difficult to predict the
outcome and impact on the Company of any changes in
healthcare policy relating to the future funding of the Medicare
and Medicaid programs.

Demographic trends indicate that demand for long-term
care will increase well into the middle of this century as the
elderly population grows significantly. Moreover, those over 65
consume a disproportionately high level of healthcare services
when compared with the under 65 population. There is
widespread consensus that appropriate pharmaceutical care
is generally considered the most cost-effective form of
treatment for the chronic ailments afflicting the elderly and
also one which is able to improve the quality of life. Further,
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the pace and quality of new drug development is yielding many
promising new drugs targeted at the diseases of the elderly.
These new drugs may be more expensive than older, less
effective drug therapies due to rising research costs. However,
they are significantly more effective in curing or ameliorating
illness and in lowering overall healthcare costs by reducing
among other things, hospitalizations, physician visits, nursing
time and lab tests. These trends not only support long-term
growth for the geriatric pharmaceutical industry but also
containment of healthcare costs and the well-being of the
nation’s growing elderly population.

In order to fund this growing demand, the Company
anticipates that the government and the private sector
will continue to review, assess and possibly alter healthcare
delivery systems and payment methodologies. While it is
not possible to predict the effect of any further initiatives
on Omnicare's business, management believes that the
Company’s expertise in geriatric pharmaceutical care and
pharmaceutical cost management position Omnicare to help
meet the challenges of today's healthcare environment.
Further, while volatility can occur from time to time in the
contract research business owing to factors such as the
success or failure of its clients’ compounds, the timing or
budgetary constraints of its clients, or consolidation in the
pharmaceutical industry, new drug discovery remains an
important priority of pharmaceutical manufacturers that will
be enhanced by the advances in science such as the mapping
of the human genome. Pharmaceutical manufacturers, in
order to optimize their research and development efforts, will
continue to turn to contract research organizations to assist
them in accelerating drug research development and
commercialization.

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
Regarding Ferward-Looking Information

In addition to historical information, this report contains
certain statements that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking
statements include all statements regarding the intent, belief -
or current expectations regarding the matters discussed or
incorporated by reference in this document (including
statements as to “beliefs,” “expectations,” “anticipations,”
“intentions” or similar words) and all statements which are
not statements of historical fact.

These forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties, contingencies and other factors
that could cause results, performance or achievements to
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differ materially from those stated. These forward-looking
statements and trends include those relating to expectations
concerning Omnicares financial performance; internal growth
trends; growth in beds served; new contract development;
expansion of clinical and other service programs; increased
market penetration of newer drugs; trends concerning
government reimbursement; trends concerning drug price
inflation; the impact of Omnicare’s productivity, consolidation
and integration programs; expected benefits from acquisitions,
including NCS and APS; the operating environment in the
skilled nursing facility and drug research markets; the impact
of legislation, including legislation related to reimbursement
rates; expectations concerning Medicare reimbursement
trends and Congressional action with respect thereto:

the impact of healthcare funding issues including pricing
pressures; the impact of the CRO's global selling efforts;

the impact of higher demand for CRO services from
pharmaceutical manufacturers and biotechnology companies;
the impact of worldwide CRO expansion; trends concerning
the commencement, continuation or cancellation of CRO
projects and backlog; purchasing leverage; the impact of
Omnicare’s formulary compliance program; the impact of
leveraging of costs and trends concerning the continuation
thereof: the ability to obtain price increases; the ability to
allocate resources in order to enhance gross profit margins:
the impact of pharmaceutical purchasing programs; the
adequacy and availability of Omnicare’s sources of liquidity
and capital; expectations concerning future financing or
refinancing of debt or equity; the adequacy of Omnicare's
allowance for doubtful accounts; the impact of PPS on SNI's
and Omnicare; trends concerning the acuity of patients
served; trends concerning SNF occupancy levels; the impact
of demographic trends; the impact of new drug development;
opportunities to contain healthcare costs while ensuring the
well-being of the elderly population; and developments
concerning future healthcare delivery systems and payment
methodologies. Such risks, uncertainties, contingencies,
assumptions and other factors, many of which are beyond
Omnicare's control, include without limitation: overall
economic, financial and business conditions; trends for the
continued growth of Omnicare’s business; the ability to
implement productivity, consolidation, integration and cost
reduction efforts and to realize related anticipated benefits:
the impact and pace of pharmaceutical price increases; delays
and further reductions in reimbursement by the government
and other payors to Omnicare and its customers as a result
of pressure on federal and state budgets due to the continuing
economic downturn and other factors; the overall financial
condition of Omnicare’s customers; the ability to assess and
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react to the financial condition of customers; the ability

of vendors and business partners to continue to provide
products and services to Omnicare; the continued successful
integration of the CRO business and acquired companies,
including APS and NCS, and the ability to realize anticipated
revenues, economies of scale, cost synergies and profitability;
the continued availability of suitable acquisition candidates;
pricing and other competitive factors in Omnicare’s industry;
increases or decreases in reimbursement; the effect of new
government regulations, executive orders and/or legislative
initiatives, including those relating to reimbursement and
drug pricing policies, and changes in the interpretation and
application of these policies; government budgetary pressures
and shifting priorities; efforts by payors to control costs; the
outcome of litigation; Omnicare's failure to obtain or maintain
required regulatory approvals or licenses; the failure of the
long-term care facilities Omnicare serves to maintain required
regulatory approvals; loss or delay of CRO contracts for
regulatory or other reasons; the ability of CRO projects to
produce revenues in future periods; the ability to attract and
retain needed management; the impact and pace of
technological advances; the ability to obtain or maintain rights
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to data, technology and other intellectual property; the impact
of consolidation in the pharmaceutical and long-term care
industries; volatility in the market for Omnicare’s stock and in
the financial markets generally; changes in international
economic and political conditions and currency fluctuations
between the U.S. dollar and other currencies; access to capital
and financing; the demand for Cmnicare’s products and
services; variations in costs or expenses; the ability to
continue to leverage costs through growth; changes in tax law
and regulation; and changes in accounting rules and
standards.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect,
Omnicare’s actual results, performance or achievements could
differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, such
forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date thereof. Except as otherwise
required by law, Omnicare does not undertake any obligation
to publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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Form 10-K

Copies of Omnicare’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

(Form 10-K) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission are available without charge.

Direct your request to the Investor Relations

Department at (859) 392-3331 or via e-mail to
investor_relations@omnicare.com. The Form 10-K is also
available on Omnicare’s Web site at www.omnicare.com.
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The number of holders of record of Omnicare common
stock was 2,417 on December 31, 2002, and 2,471 on
December 31, 2001. These totals exclude shares held
under beneficial ownership in nominee name or within
clearinghouse positions of brokerage firms and banks.

Dividend Reinvesiment Plan

Omnicare’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan is a convenient
way for stockholders 1o increase their investment in the
Company. This Plan enables stockholders to reinvest divi-
dends and make voluntary cash contributions on a monthly
basis for additional share purchases, free of charge. For
more information about the Plan, please contact the
Investor Relations Department at (859) 392-3331 or
EquiServe Trust Company at (800) 317-4445 or
www.equiserve.com.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Omnicare, Inc. will
be held at 10:00 a.m. on Monday, May 19, 2003, at the
Northern Kentucky Convention Center, One W. RiverCenter
Boulevard, Covington, Kentucky.

Stockholder Inquiries

Questions concerning Omnicare's operations and financial
results should be directed to the Investor Relations
Department at (859) 392-3331 or via e-mail to
investor_relations@omnicare.com.

Requests for annual reports, press releases and other
published information should be directed to

(800) DIAL-OCR ({800 / 342-5627) or via e-mail to
investor_relations@omnicare.com. These documents
can also be obtained on Omnicare’s Web site at
www.omnicare.com.

For changes of address or information concerning
transfer of stock, dividends or lost stock certificates,
stockholders should contact EquiServe Trust Company at
(800) 317-4445. The deal and hearing impaired may call
(800) 952-9245.

Stock Listing
Omnicare’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol OCR.

Price Range of Common Stock

The table below shows the quarterly high and low closing
prices and quarter-end closing prices of Omnicare's
common stock in 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
High Low Close High Low  Close

First Quarter $25.89 $20.83 $25.89 $22.99 $17.75 $21.45
Second Quarter $28.35 $23.84 $26.26 $22.65 $18.75 $20.20
Third Quarter $25.44 $18.41 $21.12 $26.00 $19.00 $21.83
Fourth Quarter $24.22 $19.52 $23.83 $25.01 $18.30 $24.88
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